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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO,
THE MEMBERS OF WHIZDM FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Whizdm Finance Private Limited, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations gwen to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive
loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditot’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
inowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report the matter to those charged
with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations. We have nothmg
to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance (TCWG) for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management;

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and
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e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may
be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
Standalone Financial Statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditors® Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, We give in the Annexure A statements
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B". Qur report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

(2) Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of Section 197, read with Schedule V of the Act, are not
applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, since the Company is not a public company
as defined under 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act, is not applicable.
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(h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact the financial position as at
March 31, 2025;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foresceable losses:

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

iv.(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the vear ended March 31, 2025.

vi, The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, is applicable from
April 1, 2023,

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has utilized accounting software
for maintaining its books of account. This sofiware includes a feature for recording an audit trail (edit
log) facility, and it has been operational throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software.
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025.

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Reg No.: 106105W/W100305

o
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Rishit Jain f‘é‘ Bengaluru |
Partner O) oy
Mem. No.: 238242 ) i S

Date; May 14, 2025
Place: Bengaluru

UDIN: 25238242BNFXPX2030
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Annexure A: To the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Whizdm Finance Private
Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Report on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the
Order”).

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, we report the following:

i. a). A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
of Property, plant and equipment required under paragraph 3(i)(a), (b) and (¢) of the order.

B) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not have any intangible asseis.

b} The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and there is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and nature of its assets,

¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us, since no immovable property is held by the
Company, this clause is not applicable,

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the
year.

€)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

ii. a) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any inventory.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)}a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in
aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of loan receivables. The
Company has filed periodic returns or statements with such banks and financial institution, which are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account.

iii. a} The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a), 3(iii}(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e), and 3(iii)}(f) of the Order is
not applicable,

b}  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company has not provided any guarantees,
securities and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii}b) is not
applicable to that extent,
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¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans or advances in nature of loans to Promoters/Related Parties (as defined in section
2(76) of the Act) which are either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

iv.  Inour opinion and the explanation given to us the Company has complied with the provision of section
185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of making investment, in respect of grant of loans and
providing guarantees and securities as applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services provided by it.
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable,

vii. a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues to applicable authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were
in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

viil. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

ix. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority,

¢y According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has
obtained term loans during the year. Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained,

d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
putposes by the Company.

€} The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as defined
under the act) during the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(|x)(e) & (D
is not applicable.
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x. a} The Company has not raised any meneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments} Accordingly, clavnse 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares or private
placement of partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year ended March 31, 2025,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) is not applicable.

xi. a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no frand by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

b}  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

XIi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. The Company is a private limited Company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section
133 of the Act.

Xiv. In our opinicn, the Company has an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business. The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us,

XV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence,
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a} The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India.
Act, 1934 vide certificate of Registration No. N-02-00317.

b} The Company has conducted non-banking financial activities during the year and the Company holds a
valid Certificate of Registration from the RBI as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

¢) The Company is not a2 Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

d} Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Whizdm
group (“the group”} does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the
QOrder is not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year. =
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xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is not
applicable,

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

xx.  As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5)
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3({xx) of the Order is not applicable

xxi.  This being an audit of standalone financial statements, clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106105W/W100305

Rishit Jain
Partner
Mem, No.: 238242

Date: May 14, 2025
Place: Bengaluru

UDIN: 25238242BNFXPX2030



5 C MEHRA & ASSIIEIATES llP

}A“,-—

[\_,]_'-*'-"[‘ﬂ |e |<|_ D AN

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Whizdm Finance Private
Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the stamdalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Whizdm Finance Private Limited as of
March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”’) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial control
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend upon on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over Financial Reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
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being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company: and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, matetial misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us-, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting-were opetating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issues by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For 8 C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Reg No.: 106105W/ W100305

Rishit Jain
Partner
Mem. No.: 238242

Date; May 14, 2023
Place: Bengaluru

UDIN: 25238242BNFXPX2030
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Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2025

The Board of Directors,
Whizdm Finance Private Limited
No 17/1, Kadubeesanahalli Outer Ring Road Bangalore-560087

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Whizdm Finance Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

Asrequired by the “Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016” issued
by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide notification no. DNBS.PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated September 29,
2016 on the matters specified in para 3(A) and 3(C) of Chapter-II of the said Directions to the extent applicable
to the company and according to the information and explanations given to us for the purpose of audit, we report
that:

I.  The Company had been granted registration under section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
on 28™ of June 2019 vide Certificate of Registration No. N — 02-00317.

II.  The Company is entitled to continue to hold such registration in terms of its asset/ income pattern as on
March 31, 2025,

I The Company is meeting the requirement of net owned funds applicable to an Investment Credit
Company as laid down in Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company
—Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

IV.  The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on April 24, 2024, has passed resolution for
non-acceptance of any public deposits for the Financial Year 2024-25,

V. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year 2024-25.

VI.  The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared
in accordance with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset
classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms Master Direction —
Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 -
read with RBI Circular - DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated November 12, 2021,

M/s S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 106105W / W 100305

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 14, 2025

UDIN: 25238242BNFXPY 5246

Office: Hulkul Kubera, No.17, 3% Floor, Lalbagh Road, Bengaluru 560027, Karnataka, India,
Contact No.: +91 9900806629, Mail: rishil.jain@scmassociates.in, www.scmassociates.in
HQ: Mumbai, Branches: Delhi | Ahmedabad | Bangalore | Chennai | Indore | Hyderabad | Jaipur |
Jodhpur | Nagpur| Pune [Thane | Bhiwandi |




Whizdm Fieamce Private Limited
Balance sheet as st March 31, 2025
(AH amopris in T fakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particalars

A Assets
Financial assers
{a) Cash and cash equivalents
{b) Bank balances oiher than cash and cash equivalents
(<) Loans
(d} Other financial assets

-

2 Noo-financisl assets
{2) Current tax asseds (net)
(b} Deferved tax asset (net)
(c) Property, plant and equipment
{dy Right of use assets
(&) Other non-financial assets
Total assets
B Lisbilitics and Equity
1 Financial liabilities
(a) Payables
Trade payables
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total aurstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
{b) Debt securities
(c) Borrowings (other than Debt secunitics)
() Lease liabilities
(&) Other financial liabilities
2 Non-financial Jiabilities
(a) Current tanx liabilities (net)
() Provisions
(e} Other non-financial Labilites

Totat Liabilities
3 Eqmity

{a) Equity share capiial
{b) Other equity

Total equity
Total Habilities and equity

The above bal sheet should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

For S C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chantered Accountants
HCAI Firm registration number: 106105W /' W100305

Radurt="

Rishit Jain
Partner
Membership No: 238242

Place: Bengaluru
Date - May 14, 2025

Notes Asat As st As at
o warch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
4 41,678.00 39,214 41 6,679 33
5 6,247.93 295.55 N
3 377.037.9% 196,080 71 34,133 67
7 4.785.37 1,602 90 676 b5
8 = 306.05 5091
9 229076 1,365.37 70854
[0 58.62 851 102
11 404.42 - -
12 1,008.61 495.14 17.41
433.511.7% 23%,368.64 42.279.53
13 38.19 4383 .
13 967.28 3,796.36 d431.47
14 16%,687.13 66,2%0,90 263115
15 151,742.45 104,610.81 2336176
16 39261 - .
17 4.930.60 1,.816.42 1542
18 26199 - -
19 209 59 162.29 5305
20 921.11 439.53 253.43
328,159.95 177,150.24 26,754,238
21 1.197 35 1,043.95 S18.77
22 104,163.40 61,1'74.45 14,904 48
105,360.78 62,218.40 15,525.25
43351170 239,368.64 42,2719.53

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Director Z)
DIN: 06921984 kﬁ
g N
/Sd\
\—P\

o
Ankit Kumar Jain

Company Secretary

Membership No: A21893

Place: Bengaluru
Date - May 14, 2025

L 0D 00931994



Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025
(41l amounts in ¥ lakhs wnrdess otherwise stated)

Particulars

1 Imcome
(a) Revenue from operations
(iy Interest income
(ii} Fees and commission income
(#ii} MNet guin on fair value changes
(iv) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost catcgory
Total revenne from operatious
{b) Other income
Total Income
z Expenses
(a) Finance costs
{¢) Impairment on financial instnuments
(d) Employee benefils expenses
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense
(B Other expenses
Total Expense

3 Profit before tax (1-2)

Tax expense
Cuarrent tx
Deferred tax (credit}
Total tax expense
5 Profit for the year (3-4)

Other Comprehensive Income
(1) Items that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the nct defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to the above
Total other comprehecsive income Tor the year, net of fax
Total comprehensive income for the year (5+6)
8 Earnings per equity share (of T 10 each)
Basic (%)
Dilunod (T
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with accompanying noles.
This is the statement of profiv and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For 8§ C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm registration number. 106105W / W L00305

Partoer
Membership No: 238242

Place: Bengalnrs
Date : May 14, 20235

Notes

23
24
25
26

27

28
29
30
3
2

3

34

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024
79,740.23 31,463 62
3.640.61 2.469.45
1,752.12 971.16
2,854.83 574.54
RT987.79 35,478.77
21.84 -
88.089.63 I54T78.77
35,340.62 13,362.2%
34,603.76 12,152,13
131156 1,249.34
45.34 2.36
3.810.82 6,374.08
77,112.10 33.140.70
10,897.53 2,338.07
3,689.2] 1,242.16
(927.56) (64 1.83)
2,761.65 50033
8,135.88 1,737.74
8.55 (59.58)
(2.15). 14.99
6.40 {44.5%)
8,142.28 1,693.15
mn 1944
737 19.44

For and ot behalf of the Board of Directors of

‘Whizdm Finauce Pmnﬂr '[E!.ﬁtq[/\
'\ p '

Membership No: A21893

Place: Bengalumn
Date : May 14, 2025




Whirdm Fisance Private Limited
Swtement of Changes in Equity for the year eoded March 31, 2028
f4it amounis in T lakhs umess osherwise siated)

A Equity shere capital

Teauad, subscribed and oMy paid up :
Balunce a3 at April 1, 2021

Changss ding che year
Balance as at March Y1, 2024
Changes during the year

Batance as at March 31, 2023

B Other eqakty

Particulars

Dalance as at April 1, 2023

from all; of stores

Profit for the year
Other comprebensive income

Trensferred fom retamed eamings to reserve fimd wy 45-IC of RBI Act 1934
Balance as at March 31, 2024
Premi ived fram al
Profit foc the year

Other comprehersive ineome

Tranfimed from retained eamings m reserve fund ws 45-(C of RBI Act 1934
Balunce as nt March 31, 2025

of shares

The above Statement of Chaoges in Equity should be read in conjuction with sccounting notes.
This is the Smrement of Clwmges m Equity referred #o in our report of even date.

For § C Mehra & Associares LLP
Chartered Accoutants
[CAIL Firm regiswation nomber: 106 195W /W 100307

Rishit Jam
Partner
Membership No: 238342

f

Piace: Bengaluru
Date : May 14, 2025

Amount
61877
42518
1,043.95
153,48
¢
Reserves and surplus Other
Securities Reserve fund wi 45-IC ied N comprehengive Total
premium of RBI Act 1934 R income
15,999.67 3753 (1,130.72) - 14,906,48
44,574.82 - - - 457482
- - 1,737.74 - 1,737.74
- - = (34,39 (4459}
- 776.47 (776.47) - -
60.574.49 Sld.00 (169.45) (44,59) 61,174.45
M 846,67 - = . I A46.67
= = 8,134.88 - 8,135,588
- - - 6.40 €40
= 162718 (1,627.18) . =
$5.421.16 2,441.18 6.339.25 (38.19) 104, 163,30
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Whizdm Finance Private-t E \'—A-/
PuneetjAg ', s rwal,
Director™ - “\ Whale 'T'1rm;‘_D-i:u.;lnr & Chief Executive Offcer
: DEI2198Y - N:0n9 f
DIN 1984 ¢ \ Ii]_'_ﬂ/:ﬂ{‘i‘ﬁf
RNy '3 % ~_x v
Anleit Kumac Jain e
Company Secrvrary
Menobership No: A21893
Flage: Bengaluru

Do - May 14, 2025



Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
{4F amounts in T lakhs unless otherwise stated}

A,

Particulars

Cash flow from Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments

Depreciation on property, plant and equipments

Depreciation on right of use assets

Unwinding of discount on security deposit

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Impairment allowance on portfolio koans and write offs

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category
Interest income on loans

Finance costs

Net (gain? on sale of investments

Interest income on fixed deposits

Ovperational cash flow from interest:

[nterest received on loans

[nterest payments

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in Working capital:

{Increase} in loans

{Increase} in other financial assets

{Increase) in other non-financial assets

[ncrease/(decrease) in payables

Increase in other financial liabilities

Increase in non-financial liabilities

Increase in provisions

Cash {used in) operations

Direct taxes paid (net)

Net cash flows (used in} operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of propenty, plant and equipment and

{increase) in bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
loss

Proceeds from sale of investments at fair value through profit and loss
Inierest income on fixed deposits

Net cash flows generated from/{used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares

Proceeds from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

availed

Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities)
Lease payments towards principal component

Lease payments towards interest component

Net cash flows generated from financing activities (C)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B-+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year

{This space has been intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
10.897.53 233807
21.79 136
2356 :
097 -
2539 -
34,603.76 12,152.13
(1.177.27) (574.54)
(79,485.74) (31,399.69)
3587845 12.187.37
(1.752.12) (971.16}
{254.4%) (63.93)
7508496 27.658.39
(27,883.73) (10.456.53)
45,981.12 10.872.47
(201,160.27) {170,357 86}
(2,036.69) (351.72)
(513.47) 477.73)
{2,834.72) 3.408.72
3.114.18 1.801.00
481,58 186.10
53.75 4777
{166,912.52) {154,871.25)
(3.121.14) {1,487.32)
{170,033.66) (156,358.57)
(71.90} {7.83)
(5,952.38) (295.53)
{709,000.00) (213,781.71)
710,752.12 214,752,87
254.49 63.93
(4,017.67) 731.69
35,000.06 45,000.00
183,051.38 77.276.98
(85,978.78) (14,413.90)
200,316.57 129,931.18
(155,846.02) {49,632.30)
{2.90) -
(25.39) -
176,514.92 188,161.96
2,463.59 32.535.08
39.214.41 667933
41,678.00 39,214.41




Whizdm Fisadce Private Limited
Siatersent of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Compooenis of cash apd cash egoivaleots

. Year ended Year ended
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year March 31. 202§ March 31. 2024
Cash in hand = -
Balance with bapks
- In current accounts 40,655.60 37,613.99
- In Fixed deposits (with original matrity of 3 months or kess) 1.022 40 1.600.42
Total 4167880 39,214.41

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with sccompanying notes.
This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For 8 C Mehra & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 106105W / W100305

Rishit Jain

Fartner (1= Bengalyry | ® I
Membership No: 238242 |\ 3\ NG/ DIN: 06921984 DIN: 00931994
NN it/
AL . 3 /
Ny N ',\ \-A

Anlar Kumar Jain
Company Secretary
Membership No: A218%3

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengatura

Date : May 14, 2025 Datz . May 14, 2025

/.| Sanjay Aggarjval

/ Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Officer



Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies
(All amount in Indian Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

(i)

Corporate Information

Whizdm Finance Private Limited was incorporated on March 27, 2017. The company is operating as a non-banking financial
company ("NBFC") business and obtained its license from Reserve Bank of India (*RBI") to operate as a Non deposit accepting
Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC-ND™) on June 28, 2019 vide registration No. RBI N-02-00317.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements
of Division IIT of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, applicable to NBFCs, and applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the provisions of the RBI as applicable to Middle Layer Non-Banking Finance Company (‘"NBFC-ML’) according to
Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, as
amended from time to time and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are the first financial statements which has been prepared in accordance
with Ind AS and other applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI").

The financial statements upto and for the year ended March 31, 2024 were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of the RBI as applicable to Middle Layer Non-
Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC-ML") according to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, as amended from time to time, which have been adjusted for the differences
in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 14, 2025.
Material accounting policies:

Going concern and basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except
for certain financial assets which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting year.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and Financial liabilities are generally reported gross
in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of
the following circumstances:

a) The normal course of business
b) The event of default
¢} The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have
been rounded off to nearest lakhs with two decimal places as permitted by Division 111 of Schedule I1I of the Act, except when
otherwise indicated.

(iii) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported inthe financial statements and notes thereto. The management believes that these estimates and assumptions are reasonable
and prudent. However, actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in the current and future year. An overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items, which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to, estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed have been disclosed below. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in the
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Estimate and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under.circumstances.




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies
{All amount in Indian Rs Lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

(iv) Recent accounting pronouncements and amendments:

Ind 45 16- Leases:

The MCA notifted the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116,
Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
iransaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively
to sale and [easeback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

The amendment does not impact the Company's financial statements.

3.2 Revenue recognition

3.3

Interest income on Loans
Interest income on loans is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL.
The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
¢. Including all fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR of the loan such as origination fees received for acquisition
of the loan and sourcing cost incurred for closing the transaction.

Interest income other than on loans

interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be measured reliably and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Fees and Commission Income

Bounce charges, delayed payment charges etc. due from customers are recognized on realization basis. Servicer fees income is
recognized either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies the performance obligations by transferring
the promised services to its customers,

Net gain on fair value changes
The Company recognises gains on fair valuation of financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and
realised gains on derecognition of financial assets measured at FYTPL on net basis.

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

The Company considers direct assighment or transfer of loan assets as one of the alternative mode or source

of fund raising. Income from assignment transactions, i.e. present value of excess interest spread is recognised when the related
lean assets are de-recognised.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
expenses, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its working condition for its intended use and net of any trade
discounts and rebates. It also includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Incidental expenditure
pending allocation and attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets is allocated/ capitalized with the related assets. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed when incurred.,

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, usefil lives and residuaf value)
Depreciation on assets is provided on Written Down Value Method (*WDV’) in accordance with the rates arrived at based on the
useful lives prescribed under Schedule [1 of the Companies Act, 2013. Management estimates useful life of assets as following:




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies
{All amount in Indian Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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3.6

Asset class Useful Life as Prescribed by | Useful life adopted by the Company
Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013

Fumiture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Computers and | 3 years 3 years

peripherals

Office equipment 3 years 5 years

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase,
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, when the asset is derecognized.

Finance Costs

Finance costs represent Interest expense and Guarantee fees recognised by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial liabilities other than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL. Interest expense includes issue costs/processing fees that
are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the expected life of the financial
liability in proportion to the interest cost of the financial liability as per the coupon rate using the effective interest method. These
include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs provided these are incremental
costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at the balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
* in the principal market for the asset or Hability, or

» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable; and

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OC1), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Company’s business model for managing them. Al financial assets are recognized initially at its fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, in the case of a financial asset not recognized initially at fair
value through profit or loss.




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies
{All amount in Indian Rs Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest { SPP1)" on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred
to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level, Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPP! are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting coatractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortized cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortized cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions
are met:
*  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment as per the accounting policy applicable to *Impairment of financial assets’. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss-

Financial assets in this category are those that are held for trading and have been either designated by management upon initial
recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109 i.e. they do not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial
recognition, if the designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis. Such designation is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

For the Company, this category includes investments in quoted mutual funds.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) are derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset
have expired, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has
not retained contrel, it shall also derecognize the financial asset and recognize scparately as asscts or liabilitics any rights and
obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Impairment of financial assets
[n accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) {general approach) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on loans.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months
{a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies
(All amount in Indian Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3.7

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end
of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Company does the
assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level.

For other financial assets, the Company follows a simplified approach of the ECL model.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilitics are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings, Lease liabilities etc,

Subsequent measwrement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gaing
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

Financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of financial instrinments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and
settle the ljabilities simultaneously.

Employee benefits
The Company provides employment benefits through various defined contribution and defined benefit plans.
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity and leave encashment.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into an independent fund administered
by the government. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after its payment of the
fixed contribution. The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss
when the employee renders related service,

Defined benefit pluns
The defined benefit plans sponsored by the Company define the amount of the benefit that an employee will receive on completion
of services by reference to length of service and last drawn salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India which is unfunded. The liability recognized in the financial
statements in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date, together with adjustments
for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or near the reporting
date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to statement of OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:
o  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

s The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies
{All amount in Indian Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liabitity or asset. The Company recognizes the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

» Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

e Net interest expense or income

Short-term employee benefit obligation:

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as a short-term employee benefit. The
Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company recognizes the expected cost of short-term employee benefit
as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Long-term employee benefit obligation:

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the reporting date. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and
are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

3.8 Leases
At inception of a contract, Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is defined as *a contract, or part
of a coniract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re
measurements of the lease liability as follows:

»  Office Building 10 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing ratc as the discount rate.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. [n addition, the carying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases:

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

The Company applies the low-value asset recognition exemption on a lease-by-lease basis, if the lease qualifies as leases of low-
value assets. In making this assessment, the Company also factors below key aspects:
»  The assessment is conducted on an absolute basis and is independent of the size, nature, or circumstances of the lessee.
*  The assessment is based on the value of the asset when new, regardless of the asset's age at the time of the lease.
»  The lessee can benefit from the use of the underlying asset either independently or in combination with other readily
available resources, and the asset is not highly dependent on or interrelated with other assets.
¢ Ifthe asset is subleased or expected to be subleased, the head lease does not qualify as a |ease-ofa low-value asset.
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3.9

3.10

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. 1t is recognized in Statement of Profit
and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognized in Other comprehensive income (OCI) or directly in equity, in
which case, the tax is also recognized in Other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current rax:
Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years,

Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the comresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax beneftt will be realized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in profit or loss, except
where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related
deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized,
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the contingency is reasonably possible but the amount of loss
cannot be reasonably estimated, a disclosure is made in the financial statements.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 1f it is no longer probable that
the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

A contingent liability is disclosed for:
*  Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
»  Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence and other required disclosures in notes to the
financial statements, unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

3.11 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to owners of parent company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue, share spht and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have :,hantred_the num ber of equity shares
outstanding, without a corres shange in resources. ¢ -
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3.12

3.13

3.14

315

3.16

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the peried atiributable to equity shareholders of
the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of giving loans in terms of Ind AS 108 "Operating segments” specified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013. The entire revenues are billable within India and there is only one geographical segment.

Operating segments are reported in a2 manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Board of directors (*Chief
Operating Decision Maker” (CODM)). The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
operating segments of the Company.

Share-based payments

Equity Settled transactions:

Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments of the holding company {equity-seitled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in liability towards the holding company in the books of the
Company. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
uitimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards,
but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vestin g conditions, Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other petformance and/or service conditions are satisfied,

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the grant date fair value of the
unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of
modification, is recognized for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwisc beneficial to the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the countetparty, any remaining element of
the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and cash at bank, including fixed deposits with original maturity period of three months or less and
short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are short-term balances, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. Exchange differences
on restatement of all other monetary items is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash Flows is reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income
or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The Statement of Cash Flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.




Whizdm Finance Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies
{All amount in Indian Rs Lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

3.17 Events after reporting period

If the Company receives information after the reporting period. but prior to the date of approved for issue, about conditions that
existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess whether the information affects the amounts that it recognizes in its financial
statements. The Company will adjust the amounts recognized in its financial statements to reflect any adjusting events after the
reporting period and update the disclosures that relate to those conditions in light of the new information. For non-adjusting events
after the reporting period, the Company will not change the amounts recognized in its financial statements but will disclose the
nature of the non-adjusting event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if
applicable.

3.18 Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ
from these estimates,

3.19 Significant management judgments:
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

3,20 Significant estimates:

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — The management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) — The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at

amortized cost requires the use of credit models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior

{¢.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgments about the following

while assessing expected credit loss to estimate ECL:

e The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial

assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

¢ Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

¢ Development of ECL models including the choice of inputs.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when
necessary.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities - Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the year when it becomes probable that
there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliab ly
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabitities are reviewed regularly and
revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.
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4 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

Cash in hand
Balance with banks
- In current accounls
- In Fixed deposits {with orignal maturity of upto 3 months}
Total
{1} There are ne restnictions with regard to Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prier period
1ii) The cash and cash equivalents for cash flow statement is same as cash and cash equivalems,

h

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivatents
Particulars

At amortized cost

Fixed deposit with bank having original matrity more than 3 months *
Total

* The term deposits with banks have been placed under lien for the following purposes:
Particulars

Liabilities against securitized assets
Bank puarantec
Total

6 Loans”
Particulars

A) Term loan
- Retail loans (at amortized cost)
Less : Impairment Joss allowance
Total (Net)

B} Unsecured
- Retail lnans (at amactized cost)
Less : Lenpairment loss allowance
Total {Net)

C) Loans in India
- Retail loans (at amortized cost
Less : lmpairment loss allowance
Total (Net)

Asat Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
40,635 60 3761399 6,67933
1.022 40 §.600 42 -
41,678.00 39.214.41 6,679.33
As at Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
624793 295 55 -
6,247.93 295,55 -
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
6,222 84 146 26
2509 = =
6,247.93 146.26 -
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
393,297 58 203,743 57 3708607
{16,259 59 7,662 86) 12,952 40}
377,037.99 196,080.71 34,133.67
303,247 58 203,743 57 3T 0%607
(15259 39) 17.602 86) {2,952 40)
377.037.99 196,030.71 34.133.67
393,297 58 203,743.37 3708607
(16,259.39) 17.662.86) {2,952 403
377,037.99 196,080.71 34,133.67

*The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) either
severally or jointly with any other person that are - (a) repayable on demand or (b1 without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(This space has heer intentionally lofi blunk)
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T Other Financial assets

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Unsecured-Considered good (nt ammortised cost)
Security deposits 1698 - =
Cash margin for non converible debentures - 100.00 17500
Excess interest spread receivable on derecognition of financial asset 175181 574.54 -
Payment gateway receivable 301212 92836 153 91
Recetvable trom related parties - - 34774
Other receivables 4 46 - -
Total 4,785.37 1,602.90 676.65
Current fax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Current tax assets (net} - 306 05 6091
Total B 306.05 60,91
Deferred tax asset (net)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2023 Aprit 1, 2023
Deferred tax assets 395781 1,904 41| T4 62
Deterred tax habilities 1.667 035 53904 3608
Deferred tax asset {net) 2,190.76 1,365.37 708.54
Movement in deferred tax assets and Liabilities
For financial year ending March 31, 2025
Openin, Recognised in Recognised in .
b:lanteg proﬁgt or loss ogCI Closing balaace
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to
Property plant and equipment no4 115 = 1.19
Right of Use Assets {net of lease Lability) - 4.96 = 496
Unammortised share issue expense - .36 - 036
Expected credit loss aliowances 1,863 30 203305 - 389855
Employee benefit obligations 40 87 14.03 {2.13) 3275
Excess interest spread receivable on derecognition of financial asset {144.60) (296 30} - {44090}
EIR impact on financial instruments measured at amortised cost 1383.71) (831.71) - (1,215.42)
Others (10.73) - - (1073}
Net Dreferred tax assets/{liabilities) 1,365.37 42754 (2.15) 2,290.76
For financial year ending March 31, 2024
Openin, Recognised in Recognised in -
b:l:lanceg protl.'lgl or loss (g)Cl Closing balance
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to
Property plant and equipment 024 (320} - 0.04
Expected credit loss allowances T26 65 1,13683 - 1,863 .50
Employee benefit obligations 17.73 815 14.99 40.87
Excess interest spread receivable on derecognition of tinancial asset - {144 60 - (144 60}
EIR impact on financial instruments measured at amortised cost (36.08) {34763y — {38371}
Others - 110731 - (10.73)
Net Dreferred tax assets/(liabilities) 708.54 641.84 14.99 1,365.37
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10 Property, plant and equipment

Office Computers and Furniture and Total

equipment peripherals Mixtures
Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2023 - 8.2 = 8.25
Additions - 785 - 7.85
Dhsposals - - - =
As at March 31,2024 - 16.10 = 16.1¢
Additions 13.20 5693 1.75 71.90
Disposals - = = -
As at March 31, 2025 13.2¢ 7305 1.75 £8.00
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 - 523 - 5.23
Depreciation for the year - 236 - 2.36
Disposals - - & -
As at March 31, 2024 - 7.50 - 7.59
Depreciation for the year 2.54 19.13 012 2179
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 2.54 26,72 0.12 29.38
Net block
As at April 1, 2023% - 3.2 - 3.02
As at March 31, 2024 - 8.51 - 8.51
As at March 31, 2025 10.66 4633 1.63 58.62

*Net block represents deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS. Gross block and accumulated depreciation from the previous GAAP have been disclosed for
the purpose of better understanding of the original cost of assets

Also Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and eqipments for the yepr ending March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

11 Right to Use

Office Premise Total

Gross careying value

Asat April 1, 2023 - -
Additions - -
Disposals 3 -

As at March 31, 2024 - -

Additions 42798 427.98
Disposals - -

As at March 31, 2025 427,98 427.98

Accumulated Depreciation

Asat April 1, 2023 = =
Depreciation for the year - -
Disposals - -

As at March 31,2024 = -

Depreciation for the year 23.56 23.56
Disposals - -

As at March 31, 2025 23.56 23.56

Net block

Asat April 1, 2023 5 5

As at March 31, 2024 = N
As at March 31, 2025 404.42 404.42

(This space has been inteniionafly left biank)
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12

13

13.1

13.2

Other non-financial assets

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024  April 1,2023
Advances to suppliers and others 241 70 1522 17.41
Balance with government authorities F2210 479 92 -
Prepaid expenses 44 81 5 -
Total 1,008.61 495.14 17.41
Trade pavables
Particulars As at Asat As at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024  April 1, 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3819 4383 =
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises” 967 28 3,796.36 43147
Total 1.005.47 3.840.19 431.47
“Includes payable to related parties. Refer Note 36 for related party disclosures
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Cutstanding for lollowing periods [rom due date of payment Total
Linbilled Not Du¢  Less Than 1 year More than 1 year
{iy MSME 1.81 36 38 - - 38.19
(i) Others 1367 953 31 022 008 967,28
{3ii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
{i1i) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
Total 15.48 989.69 .22 0.08 L0547
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Usbilled Not Due  Less Than 1 vear More than 1 year
{i} MSME 1.42 1395 2846 = 43.83
(ii)y Others 323357 356 97 20582 * 3,796.36
{iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
{iii} Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
Total 3.234.99 370,92 234.28 - 3,840.19
As at April 1, 2023
Particulars Qutstanding for lollowing periods from due date of payment Total
Linbilled Not Due  Less Than | year More than I year
(i} MSME - - - - -
(1) Others 3137 395.18 492 - 431.47
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME = = = - -
(iii) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
Total 3137 395.18 4.92 - 431.47
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defived wnder the MSMED Act, 2006
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024  April 1, 2023
a) Principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid te any supplier as at the year end - 28 46 -

b) Interest amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end

¢) Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts - -

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during vear

d) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at year end

f) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest Jues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
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14 Debt securities

Particulars Asat Asay Agat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Secured (at amortised cost)
Redeenable non-comertible debentures 163,279.96 63,861 53 26315
Unsecured (ot amortised cost)
Commercial papers 340707 241937 -
Total 168.687.13 6, 280.90 2,631.15
Debt securities in India 168,687.13 66,230.90 263115
Debt securities outside India = - -
Total 168.687.13 66.280.90 2.631.15
Refer Mote 14.1 and 14.2 for 1erms of debu secunities
“The above debentures are secured by the way of first and exclusive charge over eligible specified book debis of the Company
I41  Terms of Non-convertible debentures (sccured)
March 31, 202% March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Partitulars Residual maturity Residual maturity Residual maturity
Original maturity of loan/Amount Due within 1 Due within 1- Total Due within 1 Due within |- Total Due within 1 year Due w_“mn 1-3 Total
year 3 vear vear 3 vear yeur
Redecmable at par
Upto 1 Year 28,781 30 = 2078130 | 1735718 . 17,357.18 = = -
1-2 Year 5964860  13,0i087 8265047 | 2008426 1156272 3164698 1,050.00 . 1,050.00
2-3 years BA7865 4316111 5203976 | 193849 875000  10,686.49 1,400 00 20000 1.600,00
34 Years 184 5.000.00 3.001.84 191 5.000.00 300191 - - -
EIR impact (3,202.41) (333.03) (18.85)
Total 97.310.3%  TLITLOE 16527096 | 39.381.84 2531272 63.361.53 2,450.00 200.00 2,631.15
March 31, 2025 Wlarch 31, 2024 April §, 2023
Particulars Residual maturity Residual maturity Residual maturiry
Original maturity of ban/ Due within | Due within 1- Due within 1 Due within 1- P ; Drue within 1-3
No. of instaliments vear 3 venr Total vear 3 vear Total Due within I year vear Total
Redeemable at par
Upwo | Year 14 - 14 40 - a0 - x =
1-2 Year 143 56 199 69 19 88 3 = 3
-3 years 52 % 7% 18 50 68 12 z T
3-1 Years - | - 1 1 - = =
Total 209 83 202 127 70 197 15 2 17
“Interest rate range is % 93% to 13% tharch 31 2024: 109, to 15%: Aprl L. 2023 13% 10 14%)
14.2 Terms of Commerciol papers {unsecured)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Particulars Residual maturity Residual maturity Residual maturity
Original maturity of ban/Amount Due within 1 Due within 1- Total Due within 1 Due within 1- Totsl Due within 1 year Due within 1-3 Total
year J year vear 3 year year
Redeemable at par
Upio | Year 3.500.00 - 3500,00  2,500.00 - 2,500.00 - - -
EIR impact (92.83) (80.63)
Total 3.500.00 - 3,407,17 2.500.00 - 2.419.37 - - -
’ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Particulars Residual maturity Residual maturity Residual maturity
Orlgll'l.ll maturity of loan/ Due within 1 Due within 1- Total Due within | Due within 1- Total Due within 1 year Due within 1- 3 Total
No. of installmens year 3 year year J vear year
Redeemable at par
Upto ! Year 3 - 3 2 - 2 - = -
Total 3 - 3 2 - 2 - = =
*Interest rate range is 12 8% (March 31, 2024: 12% 10 12 1%%: April |, 2023: Nil)
15 Borrowings (other than debt securities)
. As at As at As at
Particul
rliculaes March 31,2025  March 31,2024 April ), 2023
Borrowings (at amortised cost)
Tenn loans (Secured)
- From baoks* 3641549 32,302,653 38764
- From financial institubions* 95,3269 72,308.18 22.980.12
151,T42.45 104,610.81 23,367.76
Borrowinys in lndia - 151,742 45 104,610,281 23367176
Bonowings outside India - - -
Total 104,610.81 23.367.76

* Refer Note 151 for wrms of Borrowings (vrher thim debt secuniios)

The aboxe term Joans are secured by the way ol firsond Gxclusive r.h;m._v over eligible specified hook debrs of the Company

151.742.45
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15
15.1

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (cont'd)
Terms of repavment of term [vans as at March 31, 2025

Particulars

Banks*
Bullet
lonthly
Quartecly
Sub Total

Fls**
Bullet
hlonthly
Quarterly
Total

Liabilities apuinst securitized assets*™*
Monthly
Total

Impact of E1R
Total

Terms of repavment of term loans as at Mareh 31, 2024

Porticulars

Banks
Bullet
Monthly
Cruarterly
Sub Total

Fls
Bullet

M lonthly
Quarterly

Twal

Lisbilities against securitized assets
Sdonehly
Total

Impact of EIR
Total

Terms of repavment of term loans as at April 1, 2023

Particulars

Banks
Bullet
Moathly
Quarterly
Sub Total
Fis
Bullet
Monthly
Quarterly
Tonal
Liabilities against securitized assets
Monthiy
Total

Impact of EIR

Total

iyThe C

Mo, of ingtalim emi; Due within Total Total amount
| vear 1-2 yeurs 2-3 vears | year 1-2 vears 2-3 years installments
3 - - 10,062.30 - - 3 10,062.30
123 33 & 2181956 567343 L7006 43 162 19,199.42
4 - - 1.149 36 > - 4 1,149.36
130 33 6 3303122 5,673.43 1,706.43 169 40,411.08
433 129 - 35,806 52 4,505 22 < 562 30.401.74
2 3 - 11.7%1.72 1.216.67 - M 13,708.39
462 134 - 37.598.24 6,511.89 - 596 44,110,313
278 156 26 45,549 04 21,732.19 1,786 56 46 65,867.7%
278 156 26 45.349.04 I1,732.19 1,786.56 460 58.867.70
& = = - g, % - 11,646.55)
870 323 3z 115,978.50 33.917.51 349299 1,225 151, 74243
No. of install Due within ) Tokal Total smount
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 1 year 1.2 yeors 1-3 years installments
hE - - 7548 62 - = 2 7548.62
78 32 - 15,562 04 5,708 33 - 110 21,270.37
8 4 - 2.600.00 1,150.00 - 12 3,750.00
88 36 - 15.710.66 6.858.33 - 124 32,568.99
s - - 7500 00 - - 2 7,500.00
507 122 7] 38.357.66 6,301.90 24745 &40 44,907.01
43 8 - 15.026.87 2,771.66 - 5t 17,798.53
552 130 11 60.884.53 24075.56 247.4% 693 70,205.54
12 9 - 1,578.06 995 56 = 21 2.573.62
12 9 - 1,578.06 995.56 - 21 2,573.62
(73734}
652 175 11 §8,173.23 §6,927.45 247.4% 833 104,610.81
No, of installments Due within Lol “Tatal smount
1 year 1-2 yesrs 1-3 years 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years It
i | - 366.78 3333 - 12 400,11
11 | - 366.78 3233 - 12 400.11
223 14 - 15,015.03 483504 - 337 19,850.07
b 3 - 2.342.8% 916,67 - 11 3.289.56
31 117 - 17.357.92 5.751.71 - 348 13.,109.63
{141.98)
242 118 - 17,724.70 5,785.04 - 360 23,367, T&

y has not defyvlted in the repay of dues to its lenders

ii} The Company has utilised the borrowings for the purpose for which it was obtained

*Interest Rate range is 10.75% 10 14% (March 31, 2024: 8 4% to 13%; Apnil 1, 2023: 12.75%)
**Interest Rate range is 12% 10 14.95% (March 31, 2024: 12% to 14.90%; April [, 2023: 12.50% to 13%%)

***literest Rale range is | 1.60% to 13%% (March 31, 2023; 11.95% w0 12.60%; Aprl |, 2023 Nil}
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16 Lease linbilities
Particulars

Lease labalities {reler e 35)
Total

16,1 Reconciliation of liabilities from Rm:ancing activities
Particulars
Balance as at April 1, 2023
Proceeds
Repayments
Interest expense
Payment of inrerest
Man cash:
Adjustiments during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2024
Praceeds
Repaymeits
Iiterest expense
Payrient of imerest
Nom cash:
Adjustments during the year
Balonce as at March 3¢, 2023

17 Other finzncial liabilities
Particulars

At wmertized coxt

Remittances payable — derecopnised financial inscument®
Salarkes and bonus pavable

Taotal

*Represents the amount collectad frony underlying cusiomers yet to be paid to the

18 Current tox lisbilities {net)

Particulars

Provison for tax {net)
Total
19 Provisions

Particulars

Provisivn for grawity (refer note 371
Provisions for compensated absences
Total

20 Other-non financial liabilities

Particulars

Statutory lisbilites
Total

11 hix spae fes boen infeationally beff blonk)

As al As at Asad
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 Aprit 1, 2023
30261 = 5
302,61 = =
Borrowings Lease Liobilities Totol
25,998.91 - 25,998.91
20720816 - 207,208.16
164,046 20) - (64,1k46.20)
10,995 37 - 10,995.37
110,456 53) - (10,456.53)
1.192.00 - §.192.00
170,891.71 - LHLB9L.TA
38336703 39531 343, T63.46
(241,824 80) (2.90% 1241.827.70)
30,880 13 23539 30,905.54
(27.883 73} 125 39} {27,909.12)
4998 30 - 4.998.30
320,429,58 392.61 320,822.19
As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
4,793 66 L7710] -
136.94 4541 1542
4.930.60 1,816.42 15.41
2 date
Ay at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April [, 2023
261.99 - -
261.99 - -
As at As at At at
March 31,2025  March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
144 48 10028 40 81
65.11 6211 1424
209.59 162,39 55.05
As at As at Asat
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
92111 43953 25343
2111 439.53 253.43
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21 Equity share capital

2

Lo

Particulars Asat As at As al

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Authorised share capital
1.50.00.000 equiry shares of INR 10 cach
{Marsh 31, 2024 1,56,00,000 and April 1, 2023: 1.00.00.000 equity shares of INR 10 cach) 1.500,00 1,500 09 1.000.00

Tetal authorised capital 1,500.00 1,500,00 L,000.00
Issuedl, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

119,73 460 equiry shares of [NR 10 each

{March 31, 2024; 104,539,546 and Apiil 1, 2023: 51,87,69d equity shates of INR 10 each) 1,197 35 1,043 05 61877

Total equiry share capital L197.35 104395 41877

{i} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to squity shares:

The Company has only ore class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is emitled to one vote per share. All equity shares rank squally with regard 1o dividends and
share in the Compam’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled o receive dividend as declared, On winding up of the Company, the balders of equiry shares will be entitled 1o receive the residunl assets of
the Company in propodtion ko the number of equity shares held

{ii) Reconciliation of equity shares ding at the beginning and end of the year
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024

Nao, of shares Amouni No. of shares Amount
Equity share capital of 2 10 each fully paid vp
Balance at the bepinning of the year 10,439, 546 1043 95 6. 1876594 61577
Add: Issued during the year 1.333.914 153.40 4,251,852 42518
Balance at the end of the year 11,973.460 1.197.35 10,439,546 1.043.93
(iii) Shares hedd by the bolding company
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As ol March 31, 2024

Na. of shares % holding No. of shares % holdi
Whizdm Janosations Private Limiled 11,973 460 100 00% 10,439,546 100 007
*Out of the above. | share is held by nominee an behalf of holding company
(iv) Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 Asg a3t March 31, 2024

Mo, of shares ‘¥ holdi No. of shaces “a holdi
Whizdm Inmovations Private Limired 11,973 460 100.00% 10,439 546 190,00
(v} Details of shares held by promoters
MName of promoter As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 % change duriog

No. of shores % holding No. of shares % holding the year
Whizdm Langvations Private Limited 11,975,460 100.00% 5 10,439,546 100 00* 5 0.00%,
Other equity
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Securities premium 95,421 16 60,574 49 15,999.67
Reserve fund wis 45-IC of RBI Act 1934 244108 314.00 3753
Retained earnings 633925 1162 45} (115072
Other compreliensive income (38 19 {d4 59} -
Total 104,163.40 61,174.45 14,906.48
Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium
The amount 1eceived in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium. The reserve can be utitised only in accordance with the prosisions of the Companies Act, 2013
Statutory reserve

Slatutory reserse rey the reserve d as per section 45(C of the RBI Act, [934, pursuant to which a Non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and fransfer therein a sum not less than
twenty percem of its net profir annually as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss, before any dividend is declared

Retsined earnings
Retained earings are e profils that the Company has eamed nill date, less any transfers io statutary resere and dividend distributions paid to sharehold

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income rep the ¢

gams and losses arising on the faic valuation of loans meagured a1 faix vatue through Other Comprehensive Income
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23

4

25

26

17

28

29

30

31

Interest income

Particulars

On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans

Interest income on deposits with banks
Total

Fees and commission income
Particulars

Fees and commission income
Tetal
Met gain on fair value changes

PFarticulars

{A) Net gain o financial instruments measured at fair value through prefit or loss
(1) On trading portfolio
- Investments
Deb securities
Net gain on fair value changes for instrument measured at fair value threugh profit and loss
Fair value changes
- Realised
- Unrealised
Net gain on fair value changes for instrument measured at fair value through profit and loss

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

Particulars

Met gain on derecognition of financial inshuments under amortised cost category
Total

Other income
Particulars

Miscellaneous income
Total

Finance costs

Particulars

On i ial liabilities red at amortised cost
[nterest on borrewings (other than debt securities)
[nferest on debt secnrities

Interest on lease liabilities

Guaramee fees

Totsl

Impairment on Nimancinl instruments

Particulars

[mpairment allowance on portfolio loans and write offs
Total

Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution o provident and siher funds
Gratuity expense (cefer note 37)
Employee share-based pavinent expense
Staft welfare expenses

Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

Depreciation on property. plant and equipments {refer note 10}
Depraciation on right of use assets {refer note 11}
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
79.485.73 31,399 69
254 49 53 93
79,740.23 31,463.62
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3.64061 2,469 45
3.640.61 2,469.45
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 31 March 2024
1,752.12 97i.16
1,752.12 971,16
175212 916
1,752.12 271.16
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 31 March 2024
2,854 83 574 54
2.854.83 374.54
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 31 March 2024
21.84 -
21.84 -
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 31 March 2024
17,434 63 8,172.66
17.525 46 4,014.71
2539 -
15514 1,174.92
35.340.62 13,362.29
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
34.603.76 12,152.13
34,603.76 12,152.13
For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
2,561 06 933.66
23,58 77
44,84 2839
679.34 25996
271 012
331156 1,249.84
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
21.78 230
2356 -
45.34 236
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32

32.

322

33

Other cxpenses
Particulars

Legal and profiessional charpes

Transaction processing chiarges

IT maintenance charges

Pavment 1o Directors

Corporate secial responsibility expenses (refer note 32 2)
Rates and taxes

Bank charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

* Refer note 36 for related party disclosures

Auditor fees and expenses comprises of:
Particulars

- Audit fees
« Reimbursermnznt of expenses

Corporate socisl responsibility expenses

For the year ¢nded For the vear ended
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
2663 1.744.53
HEu2 2206 68
1211 54 463 47
4592 -
3651 »
1.144 67 171142
35276 22126
54.77 2170
3.510.82 6,.374.08
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1500 9.0
032 027

As per Section 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013, 2 company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of ils average net profit for the immediately preceding three
financial vears on corporate social responsibility { CSR ) activities Details of CSR activities underlaken by the Company is as described below:

Particulars

a)y Gross amount reguired to be spent by the Company during the vear as per section 135 of the Companses Act, 2013 read with

Schedule V1

by Amount spent during the year on :
ti) Construction / acquisition of any asset
tit) On purpose other than (i) above
In cash
Yet 1o be paid
¢} Excess spent at the end ol the year
diTotal of previous years shortfall at the end of the year

For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
3603
36,51 B
048 =

The Company does not have unspent CSR amount as on March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and Apeil 01, 2023 Further, funds set aside for CSR are utilized in women empowerment, skill

development, francial literacy, eradicating poverty and empowerment of socially and economically backward people

Fax expense

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Particulars

Cuerent tax
Deeferred tax (credit)
Total

The major components of incorne tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective fax rate 15 as below:

Accounting profit before income tax

Income 1ax rate

Expected income tax expense

Adjustments fo respect of taxes

Expense disallowed under 1he provisions of Income tax Act, 1961
Total income tax expense

Iocome tax recognised in other comprebensive incone:
Dreferred tax (credit)i’charge on remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Income tax charge to other comprehensive income

Earnings per equity share (basic and diluted}

Particulars

Profit for the year

Weighted-average number of equity shares for basic EPS
Weighted-average number of polential equihy shares for diluted EP3
Eamings per share - Basic (in 7}

Eamings per share - Diluted {in T}

Face Value per share {in %)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3,080.2] 1,242.16
{927.56) (641.83)
2,761.65 600.33
10,897.53 2,338.07
25.17% 25.17%
2,742.69 583.45
18.96 11.89
2.761.65 600.33
215 14.99}
.15 {14.99)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
8,13588 1,737.74
11,03822) 3.939 603
15,038.221 8,939 603
s 1944
737 19.44
19.00 10.00
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35, Leasing arrangements

The Company has leases for oifice premises used in its business operations With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assels, each lease s

reflected on the balance sheet as right-of-use asset and lease liabilities

Each lease gencrally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by
the Company. The Company is prehibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office buildings the Company must keep those

properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their onginal condition at the end of the lease

{a} Right of Uise assets

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use asscts recogrised and the movements during the period

Particulars

As at April 1, 2023
Additions
Adjustments
Depreciation expense
As at March 31, 2024
Additions
Adjustments
Depreciation expense
As at March 31, 2025

(b} Lease liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements durmg the period

Particulars
i) Amount recognised in Balance Sheet

As at April 1, 2023
Additions

[nterest accrued
Payments

Adjustments

As at March 31, 2024
Additions

[nterest accrued
Pavments

Adjusiments

As at March 31, 2023

(¢} Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
Particulacs

Within one year

Afier one year but not more than five years
More than five years

Total

{d) Information about right of #se assets
Particulars

Nature of right of use asset

No. of nght of use assets leased

Range of remaining term

Average remaming lease term

Future cash flows to which lessee is potentially exposed to
Vanrable lease payments

Extension and termination options

Residual value guarantees

Leases not yet commenced o which the lessee is committed
Total

Restrictions or covenants imposed by leases

Sale and leaseback transactions

Office Buildings Total
427 93 42798
{23 56} {23 56)
404.42 404.42
Office Buildings Total
39551 39331
2539 2539
(28.29} {23.2%)
392.61 392.61
As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
62.87 - -
291.55 - -
32028 - -
674.70 - -
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Office premises NA NA
l Na NA
103 months N NA
133 months NA NA
NA NA
Mil NA NA
Nil NA NA
Mil NA NA
Nil NA NA
Nil NaA NaA
Nil NA NA
Nil NA NA

(e) On application of Ind AS 116 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised was 1300 % pa
(f} Lease rentals of  2.08 {March 31, 2024: Z 0.|3) pertaining to short-term leases and low vaiue assets has been charged to statement of profit and loss
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36. Related party disclosures

{a) Parties where control exists includes:

Name of party

Key managerial personvel

Sanjay Amearwal Whols Tine Director and Chief Executive Otficer {w e f. Apnl 24, 2024)
Puneet Agarwal Non-Executive Director

Nagaraj Subrarnanya Non-Exgeutive Birecior

Sandeep Bhandari Independent Crrector {w.e £, April 24, 2024)
Kavita lyer Independent Director (w e f. May 7. 2024)
Ankit Kumar Jain Company Seccetary {w.e f March 30, 2024
Other related parties

Whizdm [nnovations Private Limited Holding company

Whizdm Fintech Private Limited Fellow subsidiary

Zea Fin Technology Privare Linuted Ecllow subsidiary {w 2 F. September 23 2024)

(b} The fellewing table is the summary of transactions with related parties by the Company: -

Whizdm [noovations Private Limited
Loans availed during the year

Loans repaid ducing the yvear

Sourcing and servicing fegs incurred
Guarantee fees incurred
Reimbursement of expense ceceived
Reimbursement of share based payments paid
Interest expense

Business support service incurred

Zeg Fin Techoology Private Limited
Sourcing fees incurred

Key managerial personnel

Sitting fees and remuneration

Salaries

Emiployes shore-bazed payment

Notes:

Forthe year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- 280000
- 230000
20174 11 14.925 22
6.43 116943
232414 -
679 34 25996
- 4 (2
2400 12.00
175 -
4592 -
300 0.34
1392 006

| The gratity and compensated absence expenses are determined for all the emplovees as a whole and not identifiable separately for key management personnel Hence, the remuneration

disclosed above does not include the same

{c) The balances receivable (rom and payable to related parties as at year end are as follows ;

Whizdm Lanovations Private Limited
Other (Payable) Receivable

37, Retirement benefit plan
{a) Defined Contribution Plan

March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024

April 1,2023

(576.30) (3.2086)

34774

The Cormpanty makes contributions to the Provident Fund for all eligible employees. Under the plan, the Company is required 10 contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. Accordingly,

the Compaty has secogmised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss the following:

Particulars

Employer’s contribution to provident fund

(b) Gratuity
Defined begefit plans

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2358 171

{i) The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratity Act, 1972, Emnplovess who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible For gratuity.
The amount of gratuity pavable on retireinent/termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salarv per month computed proportionately for 15 days multiplied by the number of years of

SEIVICE,

The follewing tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the unfunded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet

A t recognised in the bal sheet is as under:
Particulars

Present value of ohligation
Fair value of plan assets
MNet {liability) recognised in balance sheet

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Aprll L, 2023
144 48 100.28 40.81
{40.81)

(144:48) (100.28)
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37, Retirement benefit plan {cont'd)
Net I im the Stac

t of Profit and Loss is as under:

t recogn

Particulars

Current service cost

Interest cost on defined bene(it obligation
Expecied retwm on plan assets

Net impact en profit {(before tax)
Actuanal loss recognised during the year
Net impact on OCI

Total

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Benelits paid

Actuarial loss on obligation:
Actuarial loss(gain) from change in financial assumption
Actuarial loss from change in experience adjustement

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year

Actuarial assumptions:
Particulars

Discounting rate (%)
Future salacy increase {a)
Retirement age {vears)
Mortality

Withdrawal rate (%o}

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

37.57 2533
727 306
4434 2830
10 98 3108
10.98 308
55.82 5947
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
10028 4081
3757 2533
727 306
{1162y -
10.98 31.08
L1804 183
19497 2925
14448 100.28
As at As at As at
Maurch 31, 2025 Mitrch 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
T, 725% 7.50%
2.00% 10002, 10007
&} years &) yeas olt years
IALM (2012-14) TALM {2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
10 00%, 10.00°% = 10.00%

a} The estimates of future salary increases. considered in actuarial valuation, take account inflations. seniority. promotional and other relevam Factors such 95 supply and demand in the

employment markel

b} Assumptions regacding future mortality ace based on published sratistics and mortality mates The valuation of defi

4k

.

Sensitivity analysis of present value of obligation as at the year end
Particulars

Impact of the change in discount rate:

- Impact due to increase of 100 %,

- Impact due 1o decreass of LO0 %,
Impact of the change in salary

- Impact due to increase of 1.00 25

- Impact due to decrease of 1.00%
Impact of the change in withdrawal rate
= Impact due Lo increase of 1.00 %5

- lmpact due to deccease of 1.0 %

[Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars

Oto | vear
1to 2 year
2o 3year
3104 vear
4 o5 vear
&th year omwards

Non- current
Cument

Risk exposure

These defined benefit plans typically expose the Company 10 actuarial risks as under:

obligation is sensitive to the mortalin assumptions

As at AS at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
133133 3629 3713
158.70 6881 43513
15342 68.56 44.9%
132.33 5638 3117
14219 60 24 39 84
146 95 63 40 41 88
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
223 388 1.26
157 072 .37
179 a7e .37
194 083 037
195 084 037
129.00 9322 3807
13623 96 40 3055
523 3.88 126
144,48 100,28 40.81

Lovestment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan Liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period

on government bonds.

Interest rate risk: A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan liabiliry

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. An increase in the life expectancy will increase

the plan’s liability =

Salary risk: Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation =

~——
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38. First-time adoption of Ind AS

These Jinancial statemenis, for the year ended March 31, 2023, are the ficst financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS For periods up to and includmg the year
ended March 31, 2024, the Company prepared its financial stakements in accordance with accounting standards netified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read topether with
pamgraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2019 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP} The Company follows directions prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (*RBL') for Non-Banking
Finance Company ("NBFC™ 1. Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial staternents which comply with Ind A$ applicable for vear end on March 31, 2025, together with the comparative
period data as at and [or the year ended March 31, 2024, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies In preparing these financial statements, the Company s opening balance
sheet was prepared s at Apnl 1. 2023, being the Company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjusiments made by the Company in testating its Indian GAAP
financial statements. including the balance sheet as ar April 1. 2023 and the financial starements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Exemptions applied:
lod AS 0] allows firstime adopters certain exemptions from the retiospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optiopal
exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to lod AS:

A} Optional exemptions

i) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue the carying value of all its property, plant and equipiment as recognised in the fi ial statements as at the date of wansition to Ind
AS, measured a3 per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost after making necessary adjushnents o decominissioning hiabilities This exemption can alse be used for intangible
assets covered under Ind AS 38 Accordingly. the Company has elected 1o measure all its property. plant and equipinent and intangible assets ar the carmying value under the previous GAAP

B) Mandatery exceplions

i} Estimates

The estimnates as at April 1, 2023 and as at March 31, 2024 are consistent with those made for the same dates i accordance with previous GAAP tafter adjustments to reflect any differences in
accounting policies) apart from impainnent of financial assets based on expected credit loss model in accordance with Jnd AS at the date of transition as these were noi required under the
previows GAAP The estimales vsed by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions as at April 1, 2023, the date of transition ro Ind AS and as of March
31,2024

ii) De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS (01 requires & first time adopter to apply the de-recegnition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for fransactions occuring on or afier the date of mnsition to lod AS However Ind
AS 101, allows a first time adopter 1o apply the de- recegnition requirements in lad AS 109 retrospectively from a date of entily’s choosing, provided that the infonnation needed to apply Ind
AS 10910 financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained a1 the time of initially accounting for those transactions

The Company has elected to apply the derecognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS

iii} Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of facts and circianstances that exist ai the date of teansition to Ind AS Financial assets
can be measured using eftective interest method by assessing ils contractual cash flow characteristics only on the hasis of facts and circumstances existing ar the date of transition and if it is
mpracticable to assess the use of effective interest method. fair value of financial asset at the date of transition shalt be the new carmying amount of that asset. The measurement exemption
applies for financial liabilines as well

iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requicements of lnd AS 109 retrospectively. however, as permitied by [nd AS 101, it has used reasonable and suppociable information that is
available without undue cost or effort to determine the eredit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in erder to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date

Reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2023 and March 31, 2024

Particulars Note reference I\rlarc:s;l': 2004 AD r:sl?;ln.}
Total Equity as reported under 1he previous GAAP 65.648.15 16.765.80
a) lmpact of ELR. on financial instrements measured at amortised cost 1 123064 (14,54
b) Tmpact on application of expected credit loss method for loan loss provisioning 2 (4,969 75) {1.61322)
¢) Net gain on derecognition of loans assigned 3 574 54 -
) Others 5 4161 -
) Deferred rax impact on above adjustiments 6 1,153,949 41721
Total effect of transition to Ind AS {3,429.75) (1,240,55)
Equity as per lod AS 62,2130 15,525.25
Reconciliation of profit for the year ended March 31, 2024

. Year ended
Particulars Note reference Mareh 31, 2024
Net profit after 1ax as per previous GAAP 328236
a) lmpact of ELR on financial instruments measured at amortised cost { (186.10)
b) Impact on application of expected credit loss method for loan loss provisioning 2 (3,356,501
c) Ner gain on derecognition of loans assigned 3 574.54
d) Reclassification of actuarial gain or loss 4 59.58
e) Others 5 4261
£} Deferred tax impact on above adjustments L} 721.28
Net profit after tax as per Ind AS 173074
Oiher comprehensive income (net of 1ax) 4 (44,59}
Total comprehensive income as per lnd AS 1,693.15
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38, First-time adoption of Lnd AS (cont'd)
Footnotes for reconciliation of equity as at April ), 2023 and March 31, 2024 and profit for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. EIR and measurement of financial instruments at amortised cost

Under previous GAAP, transaction costs and income incurred/earned at the time of recognition of finaneial instrument was recopnised in the statement of profit and loss uptiont or straight ling
basis while under (nd AS suck costs and income ace included in the initial recogaition amount of financial instruments and recownised a5 interest incomefexpense using the effective inferest
method

2. Application of Expected Credit Loss {("ECL") method for loan loss provisioning
Under previous GAAP, the Company creatzd impairment allowance on loan assets basis the provisioning noims preseribed by the Reserve Bank of India (*RBI'). Under Ind AS. inpaNaTent
allowance has been detenmined based on expected credit loss (*ECL ) model

3, Net gain on derecognisation of loans assigned
Under Ind AS, present value of excess interest spread receivables on derecognised assets has been commpuied by discounting net cash flows from such assigned pools with respective pool IRE
and recognised upfiont Under previous GAAP, such spread was being recognised as and when received in cash

4. Remeasurement of employee benefit obligations

Both undec previous GAAP and Ind AS, the Compam recognised costs related 1o its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis Under previous GAAP, the entire cost.
including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or lass Under Ind AS, remeasurements cormprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income instead
of profit and loss

5. Others

Under previous GAAP. financial assets transferred througlh securitisation transactions were derecognised and excess interest spread on such financial assets were recomised on realisation
basis. As per IndAS 109. securitisation transactions do not meet the derecognition criteria due to the credit enhancements provided in these transactions. Hence, financial assets transferred
through securitisation transactions continues 10 be recognised with a correspending financial Liabibity in the financial statements Accordingly, the interest mcome on such financial assets is
adjusted 1o acerval basis instead of realisation basis

6. Tax impart on adjustments
Retained eamings and statement of profit and loss has been adjusted consequent to the Ind AS trapsition adjustments with costesponding impact To deterred tax, wherever applicable

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the stat tof cash flows for the year ended Narch 31, 2024

Particulars Previous GAAF Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash from/{ used in) operating activities {156,482 79} 124 22 (15635350
Met cash lrom/used in) investing activities 73184 {0.15) 731 6%

Net cash fromv/{used i) financing activities 183,285 6] 1123 65) 1528,161.96

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 32,534 66 o042 3253508

Cash and cash equivalents at the bexianing of the vear 667933 - 6,679 33

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 3921399 042 39,214 41

Mote: The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm 1o Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of ihis note

39, Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a mamner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is cesponsible for
allocaring resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company The Company is in a single business segment {primary segment} of wiving loans The entire
revenues are billable within India and there is only one geographical segment (secondary segment)

40. Contingent liability and commitments

{a) There are no contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Nil; April 1, 2023; Nil)
(b) There is no pendiny litigation on the Company as at March 31, 2025 {March 31, 2024: Mil; April 1, 2023; Nil)
(¢) The Corapany has no lony term contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Nil; April 1, 2023: Nil)

41. The Company has no forgign currency exposure for the year ended March 31. 2025 (March 31, 2024: Nit; Aprit L, 2023: Nil)

Fiies space has been imemronally lefi Mank]
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42, Financial instruments: Fair value and risk managements
A Accounting clpssification and fair values

The financial instruments by category are as lollows:

Particulars As at March 31. 2025 Fair value
FVTPL F¥YTOC] Amortized Cost Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenls - - 41,678 .00 - - - =
Bank balances other than cash 2nd cash egoivalents - - 6,247.93 - = - =
Loans - - V03T - - - .
Other financial assets - - 4,78537 - - - -
Total linancial assets - - 429,749.29 - - - -
Financial liabilities measured
Trade Payables - - 1,005 47 - - - -
Debt securities - - 168,687 13 - - - -
Borcowings (other than Debt secunties) - - 131,742.45 - - - -
Lease liabilities = = 39161 E = = o
Other financial liabilities - - 4.930.60 - - - =
Total financial liabilities - - 326.758.26 - - - -
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 Fair value
FVTPL FYTOC1 Amaortized Cost Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financia] assets
Cash and cash eguivalents - - 3921441 - - - =
Bank balarices other than cash and cash equivalents - - 29555 - - - -
Loans - - 196, 080.71 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 1.602 90 - - - =
Total - - 23719357 - - - -
Financial liabilities measured
Trade Pavables - - 3.840.19 - - . -
Deb securities - - 66,280.90 - - - E
Borrowings (other than Debt securities) - - 104,610 81 - - - -
Lease liabilities e 2 e = < - s
Other tinancial liabilities e - 1.81642 = - + -
Total - - 176.548.32 - - - -
Particulars As at April 01, 2023 Fair value
FVTPL FYTOCI Amortized Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 6,679 33 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents = - - - - - -
Loans - - 34,133 67 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 676.65 - - - -
Total - - 41 .489.65 - - - -
Financial liabilities measured
Trade Pavables B . 43147 - - = -
Debt securities - - 263115 - - - -
Bomowings {other than Debt securities) - - 2336776 - - - -
Lease liabilities - : - - - - -
Other financial Liabilities - - 15.42 - - - -
Total - - 26.445.80 - - - -

The management assessed that fair values of loans, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, 1rade receivables and trade payables approximate their respective carrying amounts,
largely due 1o the short-term maturities of these mstruments

E Fair values hierarchy
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced sale or liquidation sale. Methods and assumptions used to estimale the fair values are consistent in all the years Fair value of financial instruments referred to in note above has
been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy pives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities and lowest priority to unobsen able entity specific inputs

The categories used are as [ollows:

Level | Quoted prices (unadiusted for identical instruments in an active market:

Level 2: Directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level | inputs; and
Level 2: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
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C Finaocial risk management
i) Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk_ liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
company”s risk management framewaork  This note explains the sourges of risk which the Company is exposed 1o and how the Company manages the risk and the related impact in the
financial statements

Risk and exposure arising from M t framework

Credit risk - Bank balances, loans ard other inancial assets Bank deposits, diversification of asset base. ageing analysis and credit limits
Liquidity risk- Financial liabilities Regular equity infusion by promoter, availability of borrowing linits
Market risk:

Security price - Jnvestment in mutwal lunds Diversification of portfelio with focus on sirategic investrents

Interest rates ~ Term loan from banks and financial institwtions Maintaining an effective mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings

A) Credit risk

b

o

-

Credit risk is the risk that 2 counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company The Company s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by bank balances. loan assets and
other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Credit risk management - financial assets other than portfalio loans
The Company assesses and manages credit osk based on internal credit rating system Internal credit rating is perfoemed for each class of financial instruments with ditferent
characteristics The Company assigns the tollowing credit catings to cach class of financial assets based on the assumptions. inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets

{i) Low credit sk on flinancial reporting date

(i1} Moderate credit risk

{iii) High credit risk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Nature and assets covered Basis of cxpected eredit loss

Low credit risk:- Bank balances und| 12 months expected credit loss for all financials assets
other financial assets
Moderate credit risk- None Life time expected credit loss or 12 month expected cradit loss
High credit risk- None Life time expected credit loss

Based on business enviconment in which the company operates, a defanlt on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails 10 make payments within the agreed time period
as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences benween current and historical economic conditions

Assets are weinen off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. such as a customer declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the Company The Company
continues 1o engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempis to enforce repayment Recoveries made are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Credit risk management for poctfolio loans
The Company’s substantial income is generated from lending to retail customers and therefore credit risk arising from loan assets is a principal risk associated with 1he business

The risk management policy of the Company seeks to have following controls and key metrics that allows risks to be identified, assessed, moaitored and reported in a timely and
efficient manner in compliance with regulatory requirements.

- Standardize the process of identifying new risks and desigmng appropriate controls for these risks

- Minimize losses due to defaults or untimely payments by borrowers

- Maintain an appropriate credit adntinistration and loan review svsiem

- Establish metrics for portfolio monitoring

- Dresign appropriate credit risk mitigation techmoues

{i) Risk identification
Credit risk may origimate in one or multiple of following ways mentioned below:
- Adverse selection of target market for underfaking lending activity (negative geographical areas, negative communities, etc )
- Gap ia credil assessment of borrower’s eredit worthiness {failure to collect KYC documenus, verify residential address, assess income source)
- Security gaps or tzmporary technical glitches in the loan origination application leading to loans being sanctioned to ineligible individuals
- Owver-borrowing by customers
= mproper use of loan amount than the designated activity
« Over=concentration in any geopraphy/branch/zons ete

(iii) Risk t and ement

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal eredit rating system. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to loan assets based on the assumptions, inputs
and factors specific 1o the Joan. '

() Low credic risk

1111 Moderate credit risk

(i} High credit risk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Nature Basis of expected credit boss
Low credit risk 12 month expected credit loss
Maoderate credit risk l.ifiz time expected credit loss {not credit impaired) :

High credit osk Life time expected credit loss or fully provided fer
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42, Financial instruments: Fair value and risk managements (cont'd)
{iii} Risk monitoring
Monitoring and follow up is an essential element m the overall risk management tramework and is laken up very seriously at all levels within the organization Muonitoring and
controlling nsks 15 primarily performed based on limits established by the Company
Loans - Borcower risk categorization is an effective tool to flag potential problems in the loan accounts and identify if any corrective action plan are to be taken. The Company reularly
monitors borrower repayments and berrow ers are accordingly categorized in low risk and high risk
The performance indicators are continuously yenerated through monitoring alerts in the loan origination flow and post disbursal flow to highlizht areas requicing attention and action
Manitoring includes diagnostiv studies of problem areas in collections pertirmance and proactively taking actions

The risk monitoting metrics have been defined to track performance at each slage of the loan life evele:
« Credit Onigination - KYC pendency, if any; deviation index from the defined policies and procedures
- Credit sanction - Disbursement to high risk rated borrowers; early delinquency due 1o fraud
- Credit monitoring -
- Portfolio atrisk - The metrics provides an indication of potential losses that may arise from overdue accounts {loans staging more than 90 Days past due);
- Static pool analysis - Provides an indication about the portfalio performance vis-a-vis the vintage of the Joans and helps compare pecformance of [oans generated in difterent tme
periods
- Collection and recovery - collection efficiency, roll forward cates and roll backward rates.

{iv) Risk mitigation

Risk Mitigation or risk reduction is defined as the pracess of reducing risk exposures and‘or minimizing the likelihood of incident occurrence.
The Company has created mechanisms for undenwriting credit and risk policy for digital leans

The follewing risk mitigation measures has been suggested at each stage of loan life eycle:

- Loan ongination - profileincome selection, document verification process. K YC checks. creditwonhiness checks based on CIBIL. fraud dowbase checks. device data. regular
updates to loon origination application based on security gaps and techmcal slitehes identified etc

- Loan undenwriting - Risk cating, credit assessment etc

- Loan pre and post Jisbursement - disbursement in the bank account only and meaitering of eacly delinquencies

- Loan collection and reco ery - monitor repavments, days past due review, DPD stagewise collection framework

-Apropriate policy-driven loan origination and colkection process

(¥} Impairment assessment
The Company is also engaged in the business of providing Inans and access to credif to the customers. The tenure of which is ranging from 2 month to 72 months
The Company's fmpainment and 1 ment approach is set out in this note. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

Definition of default and cure
The Company considers a financial instrument defaulied and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes more than 90 days past
due on its conteactual payments

It is the Company’s policy 1o consider a financial instrument as “cured” and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the entire due amount has been paid

The Company's internal credit rating grades and staging criterin for loans are as Tollows:

Internal vating grade Internal rating description Stages
Performing
Standard grade - no overdue No over due Stage |
Standard grade - past due DPD | 10 20 Stage 1
DPD 31 to 60 Stage (I
DPD &1 10 90 Stage (I
Non-performing
Sub=standard grade DPD =>9] Stage 111
Frequency of recognition

Riskiness of o financial asset is recognized in the following frequency: -

- At the time of initial recounition all financial assets are recognized as low credit risk

- Assets are evaluated basis their days past due (DPD) status at every day end, and risk classification is made accordingly till the time it is fully repaid and closed
- An asset may be re-recognized if there is adverse field information regarding client defanlt

Forward looking Appreach
ECL is based on history of financial asset and also includes forward-looking statement. Ind-AS does not mandate to forecast about the future conditions over the entire expecied lite of a
financial asset, and ensures to extrapolate projection from available, detailed information These includes - -

- [nternal historical eredit loss experience

- Industry trend of credit loss of homogeneous assets

- Historical credit loss experience of other similar assets to homoeneous set of customers

- Changes in undenwriting capacity, collection efficiency, and management strength

- Macroeconomic factors such as interest rates, povernment consumption and GDP deflator (inflation)

- Regulatory factors such as systemic risk events, policy changes, and statutory guidelines

- Systemic events such as demonetization etc,
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42, Financial instruments: Fair value and risk managements {cont'd)
Measurement ol ECL
Expected Credit Loss or ECL is measured in the following manner The Company caleulares ECL based on probability-weighted scenaries 1o measure the expected cash shortflls,
disceunted at an approximation to the EIR A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to the Conipany in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Company expects lo recehe
ECL =PD*LGD*EAD
Each item is defined as follows: -
ECL - Expected credit loss
Preseat value of difference between contractual cash flows and actual cash flows expected to be received over a given time horizon
PO - Probability of default
The Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A defaull may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has
riot been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolic
LGy = Loss given defaul
The Loss Given Defirult is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time [t is based on the diffecence between the contractual cash flows Jue and
those that the Company would expect to receive. including from the realisation of any collateral. It is uswally expressed as o peccentage of the EAD
EAD- Exposure at default
Cash flows that are at risk of default over a given time horizon, The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a futire defanlt date

Gross exposure at default (EA D) and expected credit boss on loans as at the end of each reporting year :

March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Particulars R Expected
Gross exposure  Expected credit | Gross exposure Expected credit .
Gross exposure  credit loss
at defauit foss allowance at default loss allowance at default (EAD) low
(EAD) (ECL) (EAD) (ECL) a ";[ (_“:')“
Stage 1 374,258 81 8,405 76 196.602 14 420807 34674 46 1,507 38
Stage 2 11,64].74 226906 523275 191852 1161 61 49182
Stage 3 739703 5,584 77 1,908 70 1,55627 1,250.00 95320
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL allowances in relation te loans:
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Stage 1 Stuge 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount- Opening  196,602.14 523273 1,908.70 203,743.57 34,674.46 1,161.61 1.250.00 37,086.07
balance
New assets  origimared  (@et  of 33911140 3,846 05 6,200 57 354,158.02 194,807 16 4,959.01 1,505 84 201,272.01
repayments and derecognisition)
Movement berween stages:
Transfer from Stage | {7,601 81) 4,742 99 285882 - 11,52770) 636,18 89152 -
Transfer from Stage 2 10549 1120.99) 15.50 - 20 59 4124) 2065 -
Transfer from Stage 3 0a7 - 10473 - 11.06 285 (1391 -
Assets written off and opening assets  (153,958.88) (7.059.04) 13,526.09) (164,604.01) (31,383.43) (1,485 68) {1,745.40) {34,614.51)
repadd and derecoxnised
Gross carrying amount- Closing  374,258.8] 11,641.74 7,397.03 393,297.58 196,602.14 5,232.73 1,908.70 203,743.57
balance
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tolal Stage 1 Stage 2 Stape 3 Total
lmpairment allowance-  Opening 4,208.07 1,918,532 1,536.27 7.662.86 1,507.38 49]1.82 953.20 2,952.40
balance
New assets onginated {net  of 735000 1,570.36 4681 43 13,502.99 4.153.51 1,830.71 1.189 90 T.074.12
repayments and derecognisition}
Movement between stages
Traasfer from Stage | {192 36) 12475 67 61 - 6857 3Bl 40 46 -
Traaster from Stage 2 B 60 193 86) 726 - 790 (15.75) 78S -
Transter from Stage 3 047 - (0.47) . 533 148 {5.81) -
Remeasurement of impairment {2048.33) {1.250.71} {707.33}; {4,906.26) 11,397 42) 417.85) {61833} (2,463.66)
allowance for existing assels
[mpairment  allowance-  Closing 8,405.76 2.269.06 5,584.77 16,.259.59 4,208,07 1.918.32 1.536.27 T662.86
balance
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42, Financial instruments: Fair value and visk managements {cont'd)

-

Transfler of finaocial assets

at fransfor of financad aosets that are aed derecapnived wm their cntiren:

During the period. the Company has entered into securitisation arrangements with various parties. Under such arrangements, the company has transferred 4 pool of loans, which does
not tulfil the derecognition critenia specified under IndAS 109 as the company has concluded rhat risk and rewards with respect to these assels are not substantially cransferred

The following tables provide @ summary of financial assets that have been transterred in such a way that part or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for dereconginon,
together with the associated liabilimes:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost 64,032 04 23317 -
Carrying amount of Associated liabilities 63,580 33 2.549 50 =
Fair value of assets 64,032 04 23317 -
Fair value of associated liabilities 68,580.33 2.549 50 -

By Tramsferred financial usses th are derecogmsed in their eatirons:

The Company has transferred certan loans (measured at ammoriised cost) by way of direct assighment As per the terms of these deals. since substantial risk and rewards related to these
assets were transferred to the buyer, the assets have been de-recognised from the Company’s balance sheet. The table below summarises the carrving amount of the derecognised
linancial assets measured at amortised cost and the gain/ (10ss) on derecognition, per tvpe of asset

. As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Carrying amount of Retained Assets at amortised cost 313583 390 3%

Gain on sale of the de-recoenised financial asset 2,854 83 574 34
Financial assets that expose the Company to credit risk*
Particulars As at As at AS at

March 31,2025 Mareh 31,2024 April 1, 2023

{i) Low credit rish - Stage 1

Cash and cash equivalents 4167500 3921441 6,679 33
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 624793 29555 -
Loans 365,853 05 19239407 33,167 08
Other tinancial assets 4,785 37 1.602.90 67665
Total 418.564.35 233,506,93 40,523.06

{ii) Moderate credit risk - Stage 2
Loans 937268 3131421 669 79

(iii) High credit visk - Stage 3
Loans 181226 37243 296 80

* These represent net carrying values of financial assets, after deduction for expected credit losses.

The Company dees not have any significant or material history of credit losses for all the financial asseis other than loans. Hence. the credit risk for all the financial assets other than
loans has beea considered to be negligible by the management as at the closing date

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the ebligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its Liabilities when they are due

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows The Company takes into account the
liquidity of the market in which the entity operates The management objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely. cost effective and reliable

manner A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank/Fl bocrowings securitized bocrowings, commercial papers and non convertible
debentures.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company financial liabilities inte relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities
The amounts disclosed in 1he table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

March 31,2025 Less than | year Over 1 year & Over 3years &  Over 5 years Total
upto 3 years uplo 5 years

Financial liabilities
Trade Pavables 1,005 47 - - - 1,005.47
Debt securities 100,810 39 7LI71 98 - - 171,982.37
Bormrowings (other than Debt securities) g 11597850 37.410.50 - - 153,389.00
Lease Liabilities : 61 87 137 29 674.70
Other financial liabilities y : 4,930.60 - 4,930.60
Total financial linbilities | ; 7_’ 222.787.83 108,719.77 331,982.14
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42. Financial instroments: Fair valve and risk managements (cont'd)

March 31, 2024 Less than | year Over | year & Over3years &  Over 5 years Totkal
upte 3 years upte 5 years

Financial hiabilities

Trade Payables 3,840 19 - - - 3,840.19
Debt securities 41.88) 84 2531272 - - 67,194.56
Borowings {other than Debt securities) B8.i73 24 17.174.91 - - 105,348.15
Lease Liabilities ] - - ] -
Other financial liabilities 1.816 42 - - - 1,816.42
Total financial liabilities 135.711.69 42,487.63 - - 178,199.32
April 1, 2023 Less than 1| year Over 1 year & OverIyears&  Over 3 years Total
upto 3 years upto 5 years
Financial liabilities
Teade Pavables 431 47 - - - 43147
Debt securities 245000 200,00 - - 2,650.00
Borrowinys {other than Debi securities) 1772471 578504 - - 13,500.75
Lease Liabilities - - - - -
Crther financial habilities 1542 - - - 15.42
Total financial liabilities 20,621.60 5,985.04 - - 26.606.64

C) Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial mnstrument will Aluctuate because of changes in market factor Such changes in the values of financial
instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The objective of macket risk management is 10 avoid excessive exposure of our
earnings and equity Lo Joss and reduce our exposure to the volanility inherent in financial instruments

There are broadly three types of market risks;

{1} Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The
Company’s main interest risks arise from long term borrowings and short term borrowings with variable rates

Exposure

The Company’s exposure interest risk arises from term loan facilities availed form banks and other financial institutions at floating interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the
credit markets and bajances its financing strategies to achigve an optimal maturity profile and financing costs

Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of mereases‘decreases of the index on the equity and protit for the vear:

Imepact on profit after tax

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2025 March 2024

Interest rates — increase by 1% (693.03) (469 31)

Interest rates — decrease by 1% 693.03 469 31

{2) Currency risk : Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuaie because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The operations
of the Company are caTied out mainly in India. The Company is currently not having any exposures to foreign sxchange transactions. Hence. it is not exposed to the currency risk
arising from fluctuation of the foreign currency and Indian rupee exchanpe rates

{3) Price rigk: Price risk is the risk that the fair valug of future cashflows of an investment will fluctuate because of changes in market prices of the instrument. The Company has made
investments in quoted mutual funds whihc are susceptible to market price risk.

Exposure
The Company’s exposure price risk arises from inivestments held and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss To manage the price risk arising from
investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets

Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the index on the Company's equity and profit for the vear:
Impact on profit after tax

As at As at As at

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024  April 1, 2023

Mutual funds
Net assets value — increase by 1% - - -
Met assets value — decrease by 1% P - & &
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42, Financial instruments: Fair value and risk managements (cont'd)

i) Capital management
The Company™s capital management objectives are
- to ensure the Company’s ability 10 continue s a going concern
- to provide an adequate return o sharcholders
The key objective of the Company’s capital management is 1o ensure that it maintains a stable copital structure with the focus on total equity. uphold investor; creditor and customer
confidence. and ensure futyre development of its business activities The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments 10 it, in light of changes in economic conditions
or its business requirements

Mansgement assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage The Company manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return on capital to shareholders and issue new shares

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Company’s policy is 1o keep the earing ratio below 85% which is in
line with the applicable regulatory requirements. The Company includes within net debr, interest bearing loans and borrowings, lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, excluding
discontinued operations

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

The capital structure was as follows:

Particulars As at Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Borrowings and lease liabilities 32082219 170,891 71 25,998 91
Less: Cash & cash equivalent 141.,678.00) {39.214 413 16.679.33)
Net debt- A 279.144.1% 131,677.30 19.319.58
Equity share capital 1,197 35 104395 61877
Other equity 104,163 40 61,174 45 14.906 48
Total equity- B 105,360.75% 62,218.40 15,525.25
Capital & Net debt 384.504.94 193,895.70 14.844.83
Gearing ratio 72.60 67.91 55.44

[This space has beer intentionally left blank]
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43. ¥Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The tabfe below shows the maturity analvsis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled

As at March 3E, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 1. 2024
Particulars Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months months months
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 41,678.00 - 41,678.00 39.214 41 - 39,214.41 6.679.33 - 6,679.33
Bank balances other than ¢ash and 53508 571285 6,247.93 - 295.55 295,55 - = =
cash equivalents
Loans 262,291.0/ 114,746.98  377,037.99 123,603.48 1247723 196,080.71 | 3035991 377376 34,133.67
Other financial assets 453509 250,28 4,785.37 1,592.50 10.40 1.602.90 576.65 10000 676.65
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net) - - - - 306.05 306.05 - 6091 60.91
Deferred tax asset (net) - 226076 2,290.76 - 1.365.37 1.365.37 - 708.54 708.54
Property, plant and equipment - 58.62 58.62 - 851 8.51 - 302 302
Right of use asset - 404.42 404.42 - - - -
Other non-financial assets ) 100315 346 1,008.61 495 14 - 495.14 17.41 - 17.41
Total 310,044.33 12346737 43351L.70 164,905.53 74463.11  239368.64 | 3763330 4.646.23 4227953
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables -
{i) total outstanding dues of micro 3819 - 33.19 43.83 - 43.83 - - -
enterprises and small enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors 367.28 - 267.28 3.796.36 - 3,796.36 431.47 - 431.47
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Debt securities 98.187.40 70,499.73 168,687.13 41.243.30 25.037.60 66,280.90 243130 199.85 2.631.15
Borrowings {other than debt 114,645.17 37.097.28 151,742.45 87507 88 17.102.93 104,610.81 | 1760018 576758 23.367.76
securities)
Lease liabilities [7.29 37532 392.61 - - - . . -
Other financial liabilities 4.930.60 - 4,93.60 1.816.42 % 1,816.42 1542 - 15.42
Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net} 261,99 - 261.99 - - - - - -
Provisions* 7334 136.25 209.59 65.99 96.40 162.39 15.50 3955 55.05
Other non financial liabilities 521.11 - 92111 439.53 - 43%.53 25343 = 253.43
Total 220.042.37  108.108.58  328.150.95 134.913.31 4223693  177.150.24 | 20.747.30  6.006.98 26,754.28

* The entire amount of the provision of compensated absences is presented within the next 12 months, since the Company does not have an unconditionat right to defer
seftlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or require
pavment for such leave within the next 12 months

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Bisclosures pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Com pany —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (as amended from time to time), RBI Master
Dircction on Securitisation of Standard Assets, 2021 (as amended (rom time to time) and Master Direction — Reserve Bank of ndia (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021 (as amended
from time to time}

44 Schedule to the Balawce Sheet ol an NBFC

As ot Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1,202
L ding Overdus 0 ding Overdue Quistanding Overdup
Liabilities side
| Loans and advances ovaited by the banking fi ial p inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
a)  Debentures
Secured 165,279 9% - 63 46| 53 Z631 05 -
Unsecurad - - - - -
tother than lallng wittin the meaning of public deposils)
by Deferred credits - - - - -
¢}  Term loans*® 131,742 43 - 104,610 81 2336776 =
d)  Inter-corporate loans and bormowings - - - - -
e} Commercial paper 340717 - 241937 - ]
Fy Public deposils - - - - -
g2} (nher loans - - - a -
*Includes liahilities againsl securilized assets
Asat As at Asat
Assets side March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Amouni Amount Amvount
Outerand: Dut ling Ontstanding
2 Breakwp of loans and advances including bills receivables (including interest scerued)
ay  Secured - - -
b} Unsecured 393,207 58 203,743 57 37,080 07

3 Breakop of lensed assets and stock om bire and other assets counting towards AFC activities

a)
by

a}
by

Lease assets including lease rentals under sundrv debtors
Financia! lease
Operahing lease

Stowek on hire ncluding hire charges under sundry debiors
Assers on hire
Repossessed assets

4 Breakup of investments
Current im estments

Quoted
Urnts of mutual funds

3 Borrower growp - wise classification of assets financed
As at March 31, 2025

Category

a)
]
Q)

2

Related parties
Subsidiaries
Companies in the same group
Cther related parties
Other than related parties
Twal

As at March 31, 2024

Category

a)
[3]
c)

i

Related parties
Subsidiaries
Companies in the z:ame group
Other related parnes
ther than related parties
Total

As at April 1,2023

Category

a)
by
c}

2

Related parties
Subsidiaries
Companies in the same group
Other relared parties
Other than refated parties
Total

Amount met of provisions

Secured Unsecured Total
37703799 37037 %%
377.037.9% 3703799
Amount net of provisions
Serured Umsecured Totsl
196,080 7] 196,080 71
196,080.71 196,080.71

Amoant wet of provisions

Secured

Unsecured Tatal

34,133 67 34,133 67

34,133.67 34,133.67
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44 Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an NBFC (cont'd)

& Investor group - wise classification of all imvestments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted smd umquoted) :

Category

I Related parties
a)  Subsidiaries
b)  Companies in the same group
¢l Other related parties
2 Other than related parties
Total

44 Schedule to the Balamce Sheet of an NBFC (cont'd)

T Other information
Particulary

i Gross nom-performing assets
a)  Related parties
b} Other than related parties
i Net not-performing assets
a)  Reloted parties
by Other than related parties
il Assets acquired in satisTaction of debt

As st March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 A3 av April 1, 2023
Market value f Book value Market value / Book value Market valye / Book value
break up or fair (Net of break wp or fair {Net ol break wp or fair (Met of
value or NAY*) provisinn)  value or NAY{*} provision} value or NAY(my provision)
Asat As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
73970 1.908 70 123000
1.BI2 26 243 396 80

FE0is spave has been intenttonally lefi Mukf
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45 Public disclosure on Niquidity risk

{i) Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (borrowings)

Asat Asg at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Number of Significant Counterparties k] e 3
Amouwit 2T LB BT 157.05] 02 13,388 62
*5 of total deposits Nil il il
¢ of toral liabilities 33 56% 83 64% 39300,

Nare:

L A "Significan! counterparey™ 15 defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or alfiliated counterparties accounting i aggreyate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBEC-Ds total habilines and
mare than [0% lor other non-deposit taking NBFCs

2 Total habilitres bas been computed as total asseis net off 1otal equity
3 Acerued interest and EIR impact on homowines has not been considered

{ii) Top 20 large deposits- Not applicable (March 31 2024. Not applicable, April 1, 2023: Mor applicable)

(i) Top 10 outstanding borrowings

As at As at As at
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023

Amaount 11785935 54329 60 21178 18
%2 of Tetal borrowings 36 78% 31 79% Bl 46%

Note:

1 Accrued interest and EIR impact on bomrosings has not been considered

2 Torat borrowing has been computed as pross 1otal debt basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines

{iv) Funding Concemtration bosed oo sigoificant instrument/product
As at As Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
Number of the instrument/product Amount % of Total liubiliti A % of Total liabilities Amount % of Total linhilities

Nen conventible debentures 165,279 05 5057 63861 53 36 05% 263115 G833
Term Loan from banks IGOER 06 12 150 32302463 1R 2345 ST od 1 d3%
Term Loan frem Fls 43,206 08 13170, 69738 71 39 38%: 2208012 85 800
Commercial papers 340717 (4% 241937 1 37% - 00
Liabilities agamnst secuntized sssets 68,580 31 209014, 254947 1 44 - Q00
Total 32042058 97.66% | 170,891.71 96.47% 25.998.91 97.18%
Nore:

A "signilicant instrument:product™ is defined s a single instrument/product of group of similac mstruments‘products which in agregate amownt 1o more than 122 of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities
and more than 10?4 for other non-deposit takine NBFCs

Taonal liabuliies has been computed as total assets net ofi toral equity

(v} Stock Ratios:

a} Commerdial papers as a % of: Asat Asat Asat
} srelal pap : March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Total Public funds | D62 142% 000%
Total Liabilities 1 4% 137 000
Total Assets 0 7% 1.O1% Q00
B} Non-convertible debentures (original matrity of less than one year) as a % of tolal pubtic funds, toral liabilities and tolal assets:- Ni il Nil
i
<) Other short-term linbilities, ifany asa %= of :
Total Public funds &5761% 77 53% T3 RO%,
Total Liabilities o6 02% 74 70%, 77 55%
Total Assets 49 67 55 35% 4901%
{vi) Institwtional set-up for liquidity risk management
Board of Directors:
The Board has the overall responsibility For nt of liquiduy risk. The Board shall decide the stratesy. policies and procedures to manage liquidity nisk m aceordance wirh the liquidite risk tolerancedlimits

decided by it

Risk Management Com mittee:
The Rask Management Commiittee is responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced by the NBFC including Liquidity risk

Asset-Liability Management Com mittee (ALCO):
The ALCO ensures adherence 1o the risk 1olerance/lunis set by the Board as well as implements the liquidiry risk management stratepy of 1he NBFC

46 Mo penalties were imposed by RBL and other regulators during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2074

47 The Compamy has not withdrawn any amount from any reserves during the vear ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

FHhis space has heen tnsentionally teft Mank]
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Whizdn Finance Private Limiled
Notes fnrming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 20075
(Al wmounts in & lakhy unless pthery ise stated)

53 Disclosure as per RBI Master Direction on Securitisation of Standard Assets, 2021

Particulars As At As At As At
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023

| =

[}
LAy

No of SPE's holding assets for securitisation transactions originated by the originator (only the SPV's relating
to vutstanding securitization exposures to be reported here)

Total amount of securitised assets as per books of SPEs 85.364 19 292398
Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet
a) Off-Balance sheet exposures = = =
First Loss - = -
Others = = -
b) On-Balance sheet exposures
First Loss- Cash collateral 5,695 34 146 20 -
Others* 14.288 99 365 50 -
Amount ol exposures to securitisation transactions ather than MRR
a) Off-Balance sheel exposures
1) Exposure to own securitisations
First Loss - = =
Others - - -
i) Exposure to third party securitisations
First Loss = = -
Others L = =
Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and pain/loss on sale on account of securitisation 94,182 67 2558 48 -
Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of. liguidity support. post-secunitisation  Liquidity support in the  Liquidity support in the -
assel servicing, etc. form of lien marked FD . form of lien marked FD

2560534 T 14620

Performance of facility provided. Please provide seperately for each facility viz Credit enhancement, liquidity
support, servicing agent etc. Mention percent in brackel as of total value of facility provided

Liguidity support in the form of lien marked FD :

{a) Amount paid 5349 14 146 20 -
{b) Repayment recerved - - =
(¢) Outstanding amount 5,695 34 14620 -
Credit enhancernent in the form of investment in equity tranche and overcollateral:

(a) Amount paid 13.923.49 36530 -
{b) Repayment received - - -
(c) Outstanding amount 1428800 36530 -

Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past Please provide breakup seperately for each asset class 2 80% - -
ie RMBS, Vehicle loans ete

Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same underlying asset Please provide breakup Nil Nil N
seperately for each asset class i.e RMBS, Vehicle loans etc
Investor complaints (a) Directly/ Indirectly received and | (b} Complaints outstanding Nil Nil N

* Includes Over Collateral of T 10,799.34 (March 31,2024: 2 365 50, March 31, 2023 Nil) and Equity Tranche of ¥ 3.489.65 (March 31.2024: Nil, March 31, 2023: Nil)

54 Detail of transfer through assignment in respect of loans not in default:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ende
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of loans 180,361 32.7C
Aggregate amount 78.600.06 8,894 4
Sale consideration 7273233 84275
Number of transactions 153
Weighted average remaining maturity (in months) 1716 10.C
Weighted average holding period after origination (in months) 6.84 6.7
Retention of beneficial economic interest 5,867 73 466.3
Coverage of Tangible Security Coverage NA N
Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrated Unrate

55 Details of stressed financial asset purchased / sold:
a) Details of stressed loans transferred during the year

For the year ended For the year ende

Partiolnes March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Number of loans 140,054 -
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred* 2437475 -
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred 0,53 -
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) 264105 -
Aggregate consideration 3,072.00 &
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts traasferredin eactier vears ——— - -
& NS¢ // a0CE O\
b) The company has not acquired any stressed loans fo : 2§25 and March 31, 2024 £ TSN _\.

{4,
4
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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56

o

Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Particulars
Complaints received by the NBFC lrom its customers
Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year
Number of complaints received during the vear'
Number of complaints disposed during the vear
Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC
Number of complaints pending at the end of the year

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman®
Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman
Of 3, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman
Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC
Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed)

| Includes complaints received by NBFC from the office of Ombudsman

FY 24.25

|
1.213
1,199

17

FY 23-24

307
306

30
28

2. Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in [ntegrated Ombudsman Scheme. 2021 {Previcusly "The Ombudsman

Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies. 2018") and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.

Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

FY 24-25

Number of Number of % increase in the Number of Of5, number

complaints complaints number of complaints of complaints

pending at received complaints pending at pending
Grounds of complaints, {i.e. complaints relating to) the begioning during the received over the the end of  beyond 30

of the year year previous year the year days

1 2 3 4 5 6
Credit Bureau related matters | 563 664% 9 -
Promise to Pay - 318 108% 4 =
Loan Enquiry (Credit Bureau Enquiry) - 171 100% 3 -
Collection Related - 53 100% 0 -
Settlernent Request - 25 67% | B
FY 23-24

Number of Number of % increasein the Number of Of 3, number

complaints complaints number of complaints of complaints

pending at received complaints pending at  pending
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints reiating to) the beginning during the received over the theend of  beyond 30

of the year year previous year the year days

| 2 3 4 5 %

Promise To Pav = 133 190% 4 =
Credit bureau related matters - 74 68% | -
Settlement Request - 13 100% - -
Payment Confirmation - 11 100% - -
Bank Charges - 10 100% - -

[This space has been imentionally left blank]
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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57. Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
As at March 31, 2025

Asset Gross Loss Allowances  Net Carrying Provisions  Difference between
Asset Classification as per norms of the Reserve  classification as  Carrying (Provisions)as Amount  required as Ind AS 109
Bank per Ind AS 109 Amount as per required under knd per IRACP provisions and
IndAS AS 109 norms* IRACF norms
n (2 (3) 4) {5) (6) {7)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 374,258.81 8403.76 36585305 1,497 04 6,908 72
Stage 2 11,641.74 2.269.06 937268 46.57 222249
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 T.397.03 558477 1.812.26 Fi0.70 4.845 07
Doubtful - up to | year Stage 3 - - - - -
| to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful
Loss Stage 3 - - s - -
Subtotal for NPA
Other items such os guarantees. loan commitiments, ele,
which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered Stage 1 ) - B ) -
wnder current Income Recognition, Asset Classification Stage 2 = E = = =
and Provisiening (IRACP} norms Stage 3 s 5 = a =
Subtotal
Stage | 374,258.81 §8,405.76 365.853.05 1.497.04 6.908.72
Total Stage 2 11.641.74 2,269.06 2,372.68 46.57 222249
Stage 3 7,397.03 5,584.77 1,812.26 739.70 4,845.07
Total 393,297.58 16,259.59 377,037.9% 2,283.31 13,976.28
As at March 31, 2024
Asset Gross Loss Allowances  Net Carrying Provisions  Difference between
Asset Classification as per norms of the Reserve  classification as  Carrying {Provisions)as Amount required as Ind AS 109
Bank per Ind AS 109 Amount as per required under Ind per IRACP provisions and
IndAS AS 109 norms* IRACP norms
n 2) {3 (L] {5) (6) N
Performing Asseis
Standard Stage 1 196,602.14 420807 192,394 07 786.41 342166
Stage 2 5,232.73 1,918.52 331421 2093 1,897.59
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,908.70 1,536.27 37243 190.87 1,345.40
Doubtful - up to | year Stage 3 - - = - -
I to 3 years Stage 3 - = % - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - 5 = - -
Subtotal for doubtiul
Loss Stage 3 = : - - -
Subitotal for NPA
COther items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc.  Stage | - - - - -
which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered ~ Stage 2 - - - - -
under current Income Recognition, Asset Classification
and Provisioning {IRACP) norms Stage 3 = = = 2 =
Subtotal
Stage 1 196.602.14 4,208.07 19239407 786.41 3.421.66
Total Stage 2 5,232.73 1.918.52 3,314.21 20.93 1,897.59
Stage 3 1.908.70 1.536.27 372.43 190.87 1,345.40
Total 203.743.57 7.662.86 196,080.71 998.21 6,664.65

{This space has been intentionaily left blank]
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Notes forming part of the Financia) Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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57. Asset Classification as per RBI Norms {cont'd)
As at Apr 1, 2023

Asset Gross Loss Allowances  Net Carrving Provisions Difference between
Asset Classification as per norms of the Reserve classification as  Carrying {Provisions)as Amount required as Ind AS 109
Bank per Ind AS 109 Amount as per  required under Ind per iIRACP provisioas and
IndAS A8 109 norms* TRACP norms
(1) (2} (3} (C)] {5} (6) (N
Performing Assets
Standard Stage | 3467446 1.507.38 33.167.08 86.69 1.420.69
Stage 2 1.161.61 491,82 669.79 2,90 488 92
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 [.230.00 953.20 296.80 125,00 82820
Doubtful - up to [ year Stage 3 - - - - -
I 1o 3 years Stage 3 - = = = -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - . = = -
Subtotal for doubtful
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA
Other itemns such as guarantees. loan commitments, ete.  Stage | - 2 = = o
which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered Stage 2 A _ R .
under current Income Recognition, Asset Classification age )
and Provisicning (IRACP) norms Stage 3 - = = s -
Subtotal
Stage t 34,674.46 1,507.38 33,167.08 86.69 1.420.69
Total Stage 2 1,161.61 491,82 669,79 2.5 488,92
Stage 3 1,250.00 953.20 296,80 125.00 328.20
Total 37.086.07 2,952.40 34,135.67 214,59 2,737.81

*Figures under these columns represent provisions determined in accordance with the Asset classification and provisioning norms as stipulated under Master Directions

{This space has been intentionaily lefr blank}
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58 Cerpovate Governance
1) Compaosition «f the Boord

Number #f Bear Meeti No. of othe Remumeration (Rs.} MNo. of shures held in and
Name of Director|  Direclor since Cajmcity DIN Hetd Artended D_o' o mh‘ v Salary and other Sittimg Fee | C S 5 ible i held in the
ivectorships compensation NBFC
Puneet Agarwal March 27, 2017 Non-Executive 06921984 7 3 k) - - - =
Director
Sanjoy Agzarwal March 27, 2017|CEQ and Whole D093 1994 T T 5 . - = | 1Sharz {As a uomines of Whizdm
Time Director Innervations Private Limited)
Magaraj March 27, 2017 Non-Execitiva 06906928 7 T | - - - -
Subrahmanya Dhirector
Sandeep Bhandan Apnl 24, 2024|Independent Direcror | 10603330 7 2 0 1241 500 - -
Kavita Lyer May 7. 2024/ Independent Director |929509 7 2 | 1552 700 - -
1) Details of chamge in position of the Boavd durimg the current and previons linancial year
Name of Director Capacity Nature of change Effective date
Sandeep Bhandari Independent Dirertor Appointment April 24, 2024
Kanita Lyer Independant Director Appoinmment bday 7, 2024
Sanjay Agearwal Whale Time Director and Chief Exeeutis & Officer Change in designarion Apnl 2,20

FThix apre fers heen iptensopeily leff bk}
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58 Corporate Governance (cont'd):

sfetfird)

3 Committees of the Board and their compasition

Name of the C

Terims of Reference

Assel Liabiline Commirree

sLiguidity Rish & lanogement

*Decision o desired matunty profile and mix of inctemental assets and liabilities
+Sale of assets as a source of funding.

siaragement of liquidity Risk

=orverseeing the liquidin posittans

*Funding & Capital Planning

+Forecasting and analysing “What It scenarios relaring to liquidiry

*Preparation of contingency plans

~Review and apmoval of Benchmark Rate, if amy

*Review and approval of new products

Risk Management Commitice

+Identifying, measuring and monitoring rhe various risks faced by the Company

»Mitigating various risks associated with nctioning, of the O 4

*To deal with isswes relatng to credit policy and procedure and manage the credit risk, operational risk, ete
«Creation of medels that are used lor risk measurement rom time fo time

*Monitoring inpl ion of Risk Manag Policy and the other policies including Know Your Customer & Anti Money Laundering Policy (KYC
Policy}

*To review exposure including consumer credit ¢xposure

*Identificati tand of dato quality risk

+3uch other lunctions as delegated by the Board or as mandated Iy RBIL from nme to time

Borrowing & Finance Comnultee

{a¥To avnl financial facilities from (inancial instintionis) / bankys) or othee endties in form of rerm loani'sh, guarantee(s} or in any mther fooms (~facilities™,
n connection with Comp i
16T avail imer-corpocate loan (rom any company/eody covporate

[e)To apply and avail cash management senices with various banks

[T assign the receds ables in favour of any entity or third party,

|e¥To consider and approsve availing of bank guasraniees from various banks

[NTo pledge 7 hypothecale FDRs as security 1owards Lettee of Credit in Gavor of thicd party{s)

(2¥To avail loan facilities and overdiafi facility from various banks

|b¥Ter provide inter-corporate loans, make investments and proside guaraees or securiny within the limits as approved and delegared by the
shareholders'Board of the Company as per the Act

(1§To review the list of signatories for purpose of providing loans, guaraniges & 1CDs on behal{ of the Company

(1T apply and avail corporate credit cards Tacility from various banks

{k)To consider and approse the izsue of FDRs from the Company in favor of Banks, Jor measury operations

L’Toe consider and approve the list of authorized sipnaiories to execute the dogumems required by vartous banks for cheque pnnting facilities,
{m¥Ter consider availing of credt card facility in the mame of employees f oflicials of the Company:

In)Te open and close any required bank accounts and add or delete signatories to bank accowm:

(0)To open any required trading accoums with other brokers / sub brokers

[p)To open any other trpes of accounts with third parties

(q)Te: amend or change the signatories in relation o items above

y's busi req

(r)To allor deb: of the Company pursuant ko issue of debeumures, approved by the Board including any mansfer/spliviconsolidarion thereof.
[3¥To authorize to represent the Company in matters related to ahove
[t¥Delegate specific authociry fo the Company's officials to execute the borrowing or fi tr ion d create security ete.

[u)Te decide the objects of each tranche of Rights Issue, Ranio, issuz price and approsal of the Letter of Offer

[¥¥To decide the timing of Righis Issue iranches as approved by the Board i.e. issue of offer Jerter, opening and closing of Rights Issue

[w)To allot the equity shares to the allontees, who have subscribed to the Rights Lssue or ko whom any iation of rights entill is made pursvant to
Rights Issue offer

[x)To apprave iransaztions proposed to be entered into by the Company through securitization of its loan receivables arising from the pool of identified
loans.

t¥¥To approve the issuance of Pass-Through Certilicate by sell, transfer and assignment of the receivables of the Company

[2)To sell, mansfer and assign the Receivables w0 Companies, Trust ete

(a2)Finalization of commercials, valualion, discount rates, and markups above the base bid for each Stressed Loans transaction

Discharge such other role/finctions as may be specifically referced 1o the £ ittee by the Board of Directors from time to lime.

Audil Commirtee

aiTer d appoi t ign and terms of appeinmment of auditors of the company:

biTo review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process,
ciTe ine of the fi jal and the auditors’ report thereon:

d)To approve or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties:

e)To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investmenis:

DT carry out valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever I 15 pecessary:

¢iTo review and assess evaluation of intemal financial controls and risk management systems;

hyTo mannor the #nd use of funds caised hrough public offers and related marters,

i¥To engage with internal auditors and discuss the intemal audit observations:

$¥To carry out such activites as prescribed under RB) regulations including review of fiaud,

K¥To carry our Such other rele funcrions as may be specifically refzrred 1 the Committee by RBI, the Board of Directors and / or other commitiees of
Directors of the Company
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58 Corporate Governance (cont'd):

31 Committees of the Board anil theiv composition

Name of the C Terms of Reference
Nomination & Remuneration alFocmularion. Supeci d and ad wtion of Direckor’'s appoi &1 ation policy.
Commirtee iFormulation, Supenniendence and administranon of Key Al 13l Personnel’s appointment and remuneration policy.
ciFormulation. Suped dznce and administration of Employees remuneration policy: & review of annual performance evaluation of Senior Manaz t

Personmel and making suilable recommendations to the Boad;

d)Formulaticn, Superimendence ond adminisiranion of Annuzl Perlormance Evaluation Policy of the Board:

ejversee the Company’s nontination process [or the top level t and specifically to identify, screen and review individuals qualified te serve as
executive directors, non-execulive direcsors and independent directors i with the criteria approted by the Board and to tecommend for approval by
the Boacd nominees for election at the Annual General Meeting of the Company

ASuperivtendeoce: and adminisiearion of the Fmployes Stock Optinn Schemes of the Company

£¥To carmy our such activities as preseribed under RB) regolations

hiSuch other colefunctions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Doard of Directors and / or other commitiees of Direciuny ol (e
Company

IT Suateey Committee

=Ensure that the Company has put an effective [T sirategic planning process in place;

+Ginide in preparation of 1T Strategy and ensure that the IT Stratepy aligns with the overall stratepy of the Company 10wards accomplisl ofits b
objectives;

~Satishy irself that the IT Govemance and Information Security Governance structure fosters accountability, is effective and efficient, has adequate skilled
resources, well defined objectives and unambiguous responsibilities for each level in the organisation:

+Ensure that the Company has put in place processes for ing and ing LT and cyb urity risks;

+Ensure that the budgetany allocanons for the [T funerion (including Gon 1T secoriny). evber secunity are commensarate with the Company's IT marurity,
digginal depth. threat envircnment and industry standards and are utilised ir: a mannet intended for meeting the stated olyjectives; and

+Revicw. af least an annual basis, the adequacy and eflicetiveness of the Busi Continwity Planning and Disaster Recovery M afthe £
=Ensuring proper bal of IT im fo ining Company’s 2eowrh and becoming mware about exposure fowards | T tisks and controls

“Such other functions as prescribed by the Board and as preseribed under RBI regulations front time 1o time

IT Sieering Committeg

+Assisr the T Stralegy Commttes o steategic LT planning, oversight of IT performance, and aligning [T acrivities with busingss needs:
*Oversee the processes put in place for business continuity and di recorery,

+Ensure implememation of a robust IT architecture meeling statatory and regulatory compliance: and;

+Update ITSC and CEO periodically on the activities of IT Steering Commitiee

Information Security Co

+Develop of information’ cyber securiny policies, implemenation of policies, standards and procedures 1o ensure that all identified risks are managed
within the RE’s risk appetite.

=Approving and monitoring information security projects and security awareness mitiatives

*Reviewing cyber incidents, infonmalion systems audit ohservations, momtoring and mitigation achiviries: and

~Updating ITSC and CECr pericdically on the activities of J5C

Compoerate Social Responsibility
Commitee

ajformulate / make chanpes trom time ro tme and reconimend 1o the Board for irs approval, a CSR Policy which sholl indicate the activities 1o be
undertaken by the Comapany in ageas or subjecl. specified in Schedule VIL o the Aer,

birccommend the budget o1 amount of expenditure o be imeurred on the CSR activities 1o be undertaken by the Company,

cllnonltor the CSR Poliey of the Company from ime io time:
dji ent itoring hanism to fori ion of the TSR projects, programs or activites undeniaken by the Company;

e)to enpage lmplementlm. agencies for carrying out CSR acu\-mes of the Company:

fifommulate and recommend to the Board for its approval, an Annual Action Plan in pursvance of this C3R policy; and

imake a vecommendation o the Board tor aheration of Annval Action Flan if required at any time during the financial year based on reasonable
justification

hydischarge such other role/functions as may be specifically refetred to the Committee by the Boaed of Directors in relation to CSR Policy of the Company
from fime b time

Committes of Executives for
Fraud Risk Management

) To oversee the effectiveness of frand risk management.

biAs and when a irigger ceprarding fravd is ideniified, the CoE shall review such instances. The CoE shall have authoriry to 1ake decision with cespect to
1ssuancze of the Show Cause Nolice {SCM) to the Persons, Entities and its Promoters / whole-time and Executive Dirscwors apainst whom allegation of fraud is
being examined.

¢)The CoE shall examine cesp bmissions made by the Persons’ Entities concerned The CoE shall have authority te pass a reasoned order to be

served on the Persons’ Entities cons exing the decision of the Company regarding declaraion/ clossification of the account a5 fraud or otherwise

d)The CoE shall alse liave authority to delegate powers 1o any official of the Company for signing of the SCN and/ or the order to be served on the Persons’
Entities

€jThe Committee shall review and monitor cases of frauds, including root cause snalysis, and suppgest milipgsting for 31 hening the i |
conrrels, risk I ork and minimizing the incidence of frauds

NiThe Committee shall also review various initiatives and preventive sreps betng taken by the Company for fraud risk management It shall be authorized v
seek any irrelevant information from any official! dep t of the Comy with respect o a trigger or suspected! actual fraud

) The Commuttee shall have authority o appeeve various actions required to be taken for implementation of ihis Policy

Consumer Protection Commiltes

+Monitor compliance with the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India { Credit tnfovmation Reponting) Dicections, 2025, the Fair Pracuces Code | FPC), and

ather applicable regulations

+Review comphance with the Fair Praciices Code o ensure ethical and

*Review periodic reports on complaints and their luti

*Evaluale the effectiveness of the grievance redressal mechanism to ensure rimely and €air resolution in line with RBI directives.

*Approve changes to the Customer Grievance Redressal Policy as required

*Provide regular reports to the Board on consumer protection mateers, highlighring significant issues and recommending corrective aclions.
Promoie initiatives 1o educare consumers about their rights and responstbllmcs. gnhancmg transpargncy and trust

*Identify and assess risks related ko consumner prorection and o gies to the Board

Exercise any additional powers or cesponsibiluies delegated by the Board from tune to tune.

ent with ¢ 5
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38 Corporate Governance (cont'd):

5 G of the Board and fheir « ition {cont'd)
Name of Director Member of Committee since Capacity Number of meetings of the ¢ Mo, of shares
Held Attended held in the
NBFC

Punagt Agarwal L Risk Management Committee (RMC) - Since 21/03/2022 L. Member | RMC -5 Mestings |1 RMC - 4 Meerings |-
2 Nomination & R Comumittee (NRC) - Since 21-05-2024 |2 Member 2 NRC - 2 Meetings |2, NRC - 2 Meetings
3 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee - Since 09082024 3 Member 3 CSR -1 Mecting 3 TSR - | Meeting

Sanjay Agparwal | Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) -Since 150472021 {. Member I ALCOr « 4 Meetings |1, ALCO - 4 Meetings | { Share {As a
2. Risk Managemeat Committee (RMCY - Since 21/03/2022 2 Member 2 RMC - 5 Meetings (2, RMC - SMeetings | nowninee of
3 Borrowing & Finance Committee {BFC) - Since 19/08/2023 3 Chairman 3 BFC - 3% Meetings |3, BFC - 3% Meetings | Whizdm
4 Andit Commitiee { AC) - Since 210572024 4 Menber 4 AC - 7 Meetings 4, AC - 2 Meetings Innovations
5 1T Strategy Committee (ITSC) - Singe 22/03/2024 5 Member 5 ITSC -4 Meetings |5, ITSC -4 Meetings Private Limited)
6. Information Security Comminee (1SC)- Since 21052024 & Member 6. [5C - | Meeting 6.15C - | Meeting
7. Corporate Social Responsibility Conunittee - Since 09/08/2024 7 Member 7 C5R - | Meeting 7. CSK - | Meeting
B Committes of Executives for Fraud Risk Management - Since 8 Chairman 8 {ToE- 2 Meeting 8. CoE-2 Meeting
124092024

Magaraj Subrahmanya | 1. Borcowing & Finance Cominittes (BFC)- Since 19/08/2023 1 Member I BFC - 39 Meetings |1 BFC - 39 Mectings |-
11T Swategy Commitiee (ITSC) - Since 2170572024 2. Membear 2 1TSC - 4 Meetings |2 [T5C - 4 Meetings

Sandesp Bhandari I Audit Committee (AC} - Since 21/05/2024 L. Chairman 1 AC « 2 Meetings 1. AC - 0 Meeting
2 Nomination & Femuneration Committee (NEC) - Since 21052024 |2 Member 2 NRC -2 Meetings . NRC - Meeting
3 IT Strategy Committee (ITSC) - Since 21/05/2024 3 Chairman 3 ITSC - 4 Meetings |3, [TSC - 2 Meetings

Kavita lyer I Audit Commiltee - Since 21/05/2024 I Member |- AC - 2 Meetings |- AC - 2 Meelings
2 Momination & B ation Cx {MRC) - Since 21-05-2024| 2. Chairpersoa 2 NRC -2 Wleetings |2 NRC - 2 Meetings
3 Corporate Social Responsibility Committze - Since 090872024 3 Member 3 CSR -1 Meeting 3 CSR -0 Meeting

MNote: No meetings held for Consumer Protection Committee during the FY 2024-235

F1his space feer beest intentionetty left ek}
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(! amounts in T lakhis unfess otherwise siated)

58 Corporate Governance (cont'd):
4) General Body Meetings

Type of Meeting (Annual/ Extra-Ordinary) Date znd Place

Special resolutions passed

Annual General Meeting September 27, 2024 &

Registered Office

1} To Alter the Articles of Association

2) To authorise the raising of funds through issue of
nonconvertible  debentures  aggregating upto  INR
2000,00.00.000 {rupees two thousand crore only) on a
private placement basis.

3} Appointment of Mr. Sandeep Bhandari as an
mdependent director

4} Appointrnient of Mrs, Kavita lyer as an independent
director.

59 Capital

Particulars Asat

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
April 1, 2023

i) CRAR (%)
ii) Tier | Capitat (%)
iit) Tier I Capital (%)

24.32%
24.32%
N.00%

Investmenis

26.66%
2551%
1 14%

34.00%
3275%
1.25%

Particulars As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
April 1, 2023

Value of Investments

(i} Gross Value of Investments -
(a) In India -
{b) Cutside India, -
{ii} Provisions for Depreciation -
{a) In India -
{b) Outside India, -
(iii) Net Value of Investments =
{a) In India -
(b} Qutside India, -
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.

(1} Opening balance -
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year -
(iity Less : Write-off / write-back of excess -
provisions during the year

{iv) Closing balance -

61 Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

Provisien for Standard Assets

Provision towards NPA

Provision made towards Income tax

Other provisions and contingencies (with details)
Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

[This space has been intentionally left blank]

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4,548.23 4,127.39
4,048.50 383.07
3,689.21 1.242.16
55 82 5947
8.79 48.43
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements or the year ended March 31, 2025

(A amotnes in T fakhs wrless otherrise stated)

62 Concentration of advances, exposures and NPA

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Concentration of advances
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 154.61 14227 100.31
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest 0.04% 0.07% 0.27%
borrowers to Total Advances of the applicable
Concentration of exposures
Total exposure to twenty largest borrosvers/ customers 154.61 14227 10031
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest 04% 0.07% 0.27%
borrowers/customers to Total exposures of the
applicable NBFC on borrowers/ customers
Concentration of NPA
Total Exposure 10 top four NPA accounts 23.35 12.99 1040
63 Sector-wise NPAs (Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that Sector)
Sector As at As at As at
Mlarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Agriculture and allied activities - - -
MSME 271% 0.00% 0.00%
Corporate borrowers 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Industry & Services 5.49% 0.00% 0.00%
Unsecured personal loans 1.64% 0.94% 3.37%
Auto [oans (.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Other personal loans 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
64 Movement of NPAs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.48% 0.19%
{ii} Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Opening balance 1.908.70 1.250.00
Additions during the year 9,074 89 241801
Reductions during the year (3.586.56) {17503
Closing balance 7.397.03 1.908.70
{iii}y Movement of Net NPAs
Opening balance 37243 296.80
Additions during the year 4,318.59 1,179.80
Reductions during the year {2,878.76) {1L104.17)
Closing balance 1,812.26 37243
Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding
{iv) provisions on standard assets)
Opening balance 1.536.27 953.20
Provisions made during the year 4.756.30 1.238.21
Write-off / write-back of excess provisions (707.80) {655.14)
Closing batance 5,584.77 1,536.27
65 Credit Rating Details
Type of Instrument Name of Rating Agency As At As At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non convertible debentures India Rating and Research Pvt. Ltd IND BBB+/Positive IND BBB+/Stable
Commercial paper India Rating and Research Pvt. Ltd. IND A2 IND A2
Bank Lines India Rating and Research Pvt. Ltd IND BBB+/Positive IND BBB+/Stable
Note: The Company was not rated as at April 1, 2023
66 Information ou instances of frand
Instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2025
Nature of fraud No of cases Amount of fraud Recovery Amount Amount provided lor
Others | 0.20 013 0.07

Note: There was no fraud reported for the year ended March 31, 2024
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67 Details of non-compliance with companies act
The Company has not noticed any defavlt in compliance of provisions of Companies Act. 2013 during the financial year ended March 31, 2625 and 2024

68 Details of Breach of covenant
There was no breach of covenant of the loan availed or debt security issued during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 cespectively,

69 Divergence in asset classification provisioning
No divergence in asset classification and provisioning was observed by RBI during the financial year ended March 31. 2025 and 2024 respectively

70 Declaration of dividend
The Company has not declared dividend during the tinancial year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 respectively

71 Pledging of securities
The Company has not pledged any securities during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 respectively

72 1ssue of Perpetunal Debt Instruments
The Company has not issued any perpetual debt instruments during the financial year ended March 31. 2025 and 2024 respectively

73 Derivatives
The Company does not have any exposure to derivatives as at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and April [, 2023

74 Details of financing of parent company products
The Company has not financed any parent company products as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 and April 1, 2023

75 Details of single borrower limit {SGL) / Group borrower limit (GBL) exceeded by applicable NBFC
The Company has not exceed single borrower limit / Group borrower limit as at March 3 [, 2023, March 31, 2024 and April 1, 2022

76 Unsecured Advances
The Company has not givert any Loans and Advances against intangible securities as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 1, 2023,

77 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India. Besides Reserve Bank of India , Company is registered with Ministry of Corporate Affairs “MCA”, Finance
Intetligence Unit “FIU™ and CERSAL

78 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
The Company does not have overseas assets as at March 31. 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 1, 2023,

79 Ofi-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
The Company has not sponsored any SPVs as at March 31, 2025, March 31. 2024 and April 1. 2023.

[This space has been intentionaily left blank]
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80 Other Statutory Information

8

(i} The Company does not have atry Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988).

(iiy The Company does not have any material trangactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto curreney or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested [unds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
undcrstanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vi) The Company has notl received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or atherwise) that the Cornpany shall:

(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any munner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimaie Beneficiaries.

{vii) The Company has no such transaction which is recorded in the books of account, that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii} The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any govemment authority.

Previous year's figurcs have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to confim with the current year figures. The impact of such
reclassification / regrouping is not material to the financial statement.

As per our report of even date
For S C Mehra & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Whizdm F i

[CAI Firm registration numbcr: 106 105W f WI100305

Rishit Jain
Partner
Membership No: 238242

Director w Time Director & Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 069219841 : 00931994

4%a
N ~
Ankit Kumar Jain

Company Secretary
Membership No: A21893

Place; Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 14, 2025 Date : May 14, 2025
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